
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Luis Avila, Zone 1-Director  

Anne Stokman, Zone 2-Director 
Ma Traore, Zone 3-Director 

Sylvia Ramirez, Zone 4-Director 
Becky Campo, Zone 5-Director 

PO Box 187, Patterson, CA 95363 
Phone (209) 892-8781 Fax (209) 892-3755 

SPECIAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Monday, January 13, 2025 @ 6:00 PM    

Del Puerto Health Center, 1700 Keystone Pacific Parkway, Bldg. B, North Conference Room 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD: Matters under the jurisdiction of the Board and not on the posted agenda may be addressed by the 
general public at the beginning of the regular agenda. If you wish to speak on an item on the agenda, you are welcome to do so during 
consideration of the agenda item itself. If you wish to speak on a matter that does not appear on the agenda, you may do so during 
the Public Comment period; however, California law prohibits the Board from acting on any matter which is not on the posted agenda 
unless it is determined to be an emergency by the Board of Directors. Persons speaking during the Public Comment will be limited to 
five minutes. Depending on the number of persons wishing to speak, speaking time may be reduced to allow all public members to 
address the Board. Public comments must be addressed to the board through the President. Comments to individuals or staff are not 
permitted.  

CONSENT CALENDAR: These matters include routine financial and administrative actions and are identified with an asterisk (*). All 
items on the consent calendar will be voted on as a single action at the beginning of the meeting under the section titled “Consent 
Calendar” without discussion. If you wish to discuss an item on the Consent Calendar, please notify the Clerk of the Board prior to the 
beginning of the meeting or you may speak about the item during Public Comment Period.  

REGULAR CALENDAR: These items will be individually discussed and include all items not on the consent calendar, all public 
hearings, and correspondence.  

CLOSED SESSION: Is the portion of the meeting conducted in private without the attendance of the public or press to discuss certain 
confidential matters specifically permitted by the Brown Act. The public will be provided an opportunity to comment on any matter to 
be considered in closed session prior to the Board adjourning into closed session.  

ANY MEMBER OF THE AUDIENCE DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON A MATTER ON THE AGENDA: Please raise your  
hand or step to the podium at the time the Board President announces the item. In order that interested parties have an opportunity to 
speak, any person addressing the Board will be limited to a maximum of 5 minutes unless the President of the Board grants a longer 
period.  

BOARD AGENDAS AND MINUTES: Board agendas and minutes are typically posted on the Internet on Friday afternoons preceding 
a Monday meeting at the following website: https://dphealth.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings.  

Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public 
inspection in the District office at 875 E Street, Patterson, CA during normal business hours. Such documents are also available online, 
subject to staff’s ability to post the documents before the meeting, at the following website https://dphealth.specialdistrict.org/board- 
meetings.  

NOTICE REGARDING NON-ENGLISH SPEAKERS: Board of Director meetings are conducted in English and translation to other 
languages is not provided. Please arrange for an interpreter, if necessary.  

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (209) 892-8781. Notification 72 hours prior to the meeting will 
enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting.  

Cell phones must be silenced or set in a mode to not disturb District business during the meeting. 

1 of 54



  
DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

Board of Directors Meeting  
Monday, January 13, 2025 @ 6:00 PM 

Del Puerto Health Center, 1700 Keystone Pacific Parkway, Bldg. B, North Conference Room  
  

1. Call to Order  

2. Pledge of Allegiance  

3. Board of Directors Roll Call  

4. Reading the Vision, Mission, and Value Statements  
 Vision:  “A locally cultivated, healthier community.”  

Mission: “To provide, promote, and partner in quality healthcare for all.”    
Values: “Compassion – Commitment – Excellence”  

5. Public Comment Period [Members of the public may address the Board on any issues on the Consent Calendar  
and items not listed on the agenda that are within the purview of the District. Comments on the agenda are made when the Board 
considers each item. Each speaker is allowed a maximum of five minutes. Board members may not comment or act on items not 
on the agenda.]  

6. Declarations of Conflict [Board members disclose any conflicts of interest with agenda items]  

7. Approval of Agenda Action  
 [*Directors may request moving any consent calendar item to the regular calendar or change the order of the agenda items.]  

8. Consent Calendar* [Routine committee reports, minutes, and non-controversial items] Action 

A. 2025 Board Meeting Calendar 
B. Progressive Design Build Conflict of Interest Policy 

9. Regular Calendar 
A. Any Consent Calendar items for discussion Action 
B. Declaration of Exempt Surplus Property Resolution APN 021-088-010 Action 
C. Resolution 2025-02: Sale of District Property – APN 021-088-010 Action 
D. Property Purchase Resolution – APNs 048-047-028-000 & 048-047-027-000 &  

048-047-018-000 & 048-047-007-000 & 048-047-008-000 & 048-047-012-000 Action 
E. Property Purchase Resolution – APN 048-048-007-000 Action 
F. HMA Proposal for Ambulance Variable Rate Range Program Action 
G. Director Resignation, Promotion of Open Seat and Appointment Process Information 
H. Imaging Services Update – Tentative Grand Opening Information 

10. Upcoming Regular Board and Standing Committee Meeting Dates Information Only   
 Finance – Wed, Jan 22 @ 6:00 PM   Board – Mon, Jan 27 @ 6:00 PM City Hall Chambers 
  Finance – Wed, Feb 19 @ 6:00 PM  Board – Mon, Feb 24 @ 6:00 PM City Hall Chambers 
 Finance – Wed, Mar 26 @ 6:00 PM  Board – Mon, Mar 31 @ 6:00 PM City Hall Chambers 
 

11. Adjourn   

2 of 54



IMPORTANT DATES

Holiday - District office closed

Pay Days

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT January 1       New Year's Day

1 2 3 4 1  January 22     Finance Committee

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 January 27     Board Meeting

12 13 12 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 February 17   President's Day

26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 February 19   Finance Committee

February 24   Board Meeting

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

1 1 2 3 4 5 March 26      Finance Committee

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 March 31      Board Meeting

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 April 23        Finance Committee

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30 April 28        Board Meeting

30 31

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT May 19        Board Special Meeting

1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 May 21        Finance Meeting

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14  May 26       Memorial Day*

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 June 25        Finance Committee

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30 June 30        Board Meeting

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT July 4          Independence Day

1 2 3 4 5 1 2 July 23        Finance Committee

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 July 28        Board Meeting

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 August 20    Finance Committee

27 28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 August 25    Board Meeting

31

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT September 1     Labor Day

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 September 24   Finance Committee

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 September 29   Board Meeting

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 October 22       Finance Committee

28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 31 October 27       Board Meeting

November 17    Board Special Meeting

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT November 19    Finance Committee

1 1 2 3 4 5 6 November 27    Thanksgiving

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 November 28    Day After Thanksgiving 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 December 15    Board Special Meeting 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 28 29 30 31 December 17    Finance Committee

30 December 24    Christmas Eve

December 25    Christmas Day

NOVEMBER DECEMBER

MAY JUNE

JULY AUGUST

SEPTEMBER OCTOBER

MARCH APRIL

Del Puerto Health Care District Board Meeting Calendar

2025

JANUARY FEBRUARY

3 of 54



4 of 54



BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

Board Meeting – January 13, 2025 

Item # Title Page 1 of 2 

 

z:\sharedcloud\hydra\data\tmp\pool-6-thread-1-2487935808208470827.octo\d6d384ff-2b0d-4a66-b274-
9fb0fe2321e4.docx 1/8/2025 

Department:  Chief Executive Office CEO Concurrence:   Yes  

Consent Calendar: Yes 4/5 Vote Required: No 

 

 

SUBJECT:   Adoption of Policy 1030: Progressive Design-Build Conflict of 

Interest Policy 

STAFF REPORT: This policy establishes the Del Puerto Health Care District's 

organizational conflict-of-interest standards for Progressive Design-

Build projects in compliance with Public Contract Code §22185. The 

policy defines conflicts of interest, outlines disclosure obligations for 

proposers, and ensures transparency in Progressive Design-Build 

procurement processes. Adoption of this policy aligns the District with 

state regulations and supports ethical procurement practices for 

Progressive Design-Build projects. 

DISTRICT PRIORITY: Compliance with state regulations to ensure fair and impartial 

procurement processes for capital projects. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

STAFFING IMPACT: None 

CONTACT PERSON: Karin Freese, CEO 

ATTACHMENT(S): Draft Policy 1030: Progressive Design-Build Conflict of Interest Policy 

 

 

RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION: 

 

ROLL CALL REQUIRED: NO      

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: I move that the Board of Directors adopt Policy 1030: Progressive 

Design-Build Conflict of Interest Policy, ensuring compliance with 

Public Contract Code §22185 for the ethical management of Progressive 

Design-Build procurement processes. 

 

Motion Made By Motion Second 

Director Avila   

Director Campo   

Director Ramirez   

Director Stokman   

Director Traore   

5 of 54



BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

Board Meeting – January 13, 2025 

Item # Title Page 2 of 2 

 

z:\sharedcloud\hydra\data\tmp\pool-6-thread-1-2487935808208470827.octo\d6d384ff-2b0d-4a66-b274-
9fb0fe2321e4.docx 1/8/2025 

 

Roll Call Vote Aye No Abstain Absent 

Director Avila     

Director Campo     

Director Ramirez     

Director Stokman     

Director Traore     

 

 

6 of 54



DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

ORGANIZATIONAL CONFLICT-OF-INTEREST POLICY  
FOR PROGRESSIVE DESIGN-BUILD PROJECTS (Public Contract Code §§ 22185, et seq.) 

Page 1 of 3 

https://delpuerto.sharepoint.com/sites/hr2/shared documents/draft policies/1030 draft progressive design-build conflict of interest policy.docx
 12/31/2024 

1. PURPOSE.  Public Contract Code section 22185.2 requires local agencies to establish an 
organizational conflict-of-interest policy that applies to progressive design-build projects procured pursuant to Public 
Contract Code section 22185, et seq.  Organizational conflicts of interest can occur in the progressive design-build 
procurement process when a person or entity that performs services for DPHCD relating to the solicitation of a 
progressive design-build project seeks to submit a proposal to DPHCD as a design-build entity or to join a design-
build team (of any tier), thereby making that person or entity unable or potentially unable to render impartial assistance 
or advice to DPHCD, impairing the objectivity of that person or entity in performing the contract work, or giving that 
person or entity an unfair competitive advantage. 

2. POLICY. 

2.1 Defined Terms. 

2.1.1 “DPHCD” means the Del Puerto Health Care District, a California Health Care 
District organized pursuant to Health & Safety Code section 32000, et seq. 

2.1.2 “Progressive Design-Build” means a project delivery process in which both the 
design and construction of a project are procured from a single entity that is selected through a qualifications-based 
selection at the earliest feasible stage of the project. 

2.1.3 “Design-Build Entity” means a corporation, limited liability company, 
partnership, joint venture, or other legal entity that is able to provide appropriately licensed contracting, architectural, 
and engineering services as needed pursuant to a Design-Build contract. 

2.1.4 “Design-Build Team” means a Design-Build Entity and the individuals and other 
entities identified by the Design-Build Entity as members of its team (of any tier).  Members of a Design-Build Team 
include the general contractor and, if utilized in the design of the project, all electrical, mechanical, and plumbing 
contractors. 

2.1.5 “Organizational conflicts of interest” are circumstances arising out of existing 
or past activities, business or financial interests, familial relationships, contractual relationships, and/or organizational 
structure (e.g., parent entities and their subsidiaries and affiliates) that result in: (i) the impairment or potential 
impairment of a Proposer’s ability to render impartial assistance or advice to DPHCD or of its objectivity in 
performing work for DPHCD; (ii) an unfair competitive advantage for any bidder or Proposer with respect to 
procurement of a Design-Build contract; or (iii) a perception or appearance of impropriety with respect to any of 
DPHCD’s Design-Build contracts or a perception or appearance of unfair competitive advantage with respect to any 
of DPHCD’s Design-Build contracts or procurements, regardless of whether any such perception is accurate. 

2.1.6 “Proposer” means any consultant, contractor or other person that seeks to submit 
a proposal to DPHCD as a Design-Build Entity or to join a Design-Build Team. 

2.2 Organizational Conflicts of Interest. 

2.2.1 A Proposer may not have any organizational conflicts of interest. 

2.2.2 Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, an organizational conflict of 
interest exists in the following instances: 

(a) A Proposer is DPHCD’s general engineering or architectural consultant 
to a Progressive Design-Build project, except that a subconsultant to the general engineering or architectural consultant 
that has not yet performed work on the contract to provide services for the Progressive Design-Build project may 
participate as a Proposer or join a Design-Build Team if it terminates the agreement to provide work and provides no 
work for DPHCD’s general engineering or architectural consultant on the Progressive Design-Build project. 

7 of 54



DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

ORGANIZATIONAL CONFLICT-OF-INTEREST POLICY  
FOR PROGRESSIVE DESIGN-BUILD PROJECTS (Public Contract Code §§ 22185, et seq.) 

Page 2 of 3 

https://delpuerto.sharepoint.com/sites/hr2/shared documents/draft policies/1030 draft progressive design-build conflict of interest policy.docx
 12/31/2024 

(b) A Proposer has assisted or is assisting DPHCD in the management of the 
Progressive Design-Build project, including the preparation of the requests for qualification, requests for proposal, 
evaluation criteria, owner’s program, or any other aspect of the Progressive Design-Build procurement. 

(c) A Proposer has conducted preliminary design services for the 
Progressive Design-Build project on behalf of DPHCD, such as conceptual layouts, preliminary design, or preparation 
of bridging documents. 

(d) A Proposer performed design work related to the Progressive Design-
Build project for DPHCD or other stakeholders in the Progressive Design-Build project. 

(e) A Proposer performed design work on a previous contract that 
specifically excludes it from participating as a Proposer or joining a Design-Build Team for a Progressive Design-
Build project. 

(f) A proposer is under contract with any other entity or stakeholder to 
perform oversight of the Progressive Design-Build project. 

(g) A proposer has obtained advice from or discussed any aspect relating to 
the Progressive  Design-Build project with any person or entity with an organizational conflict of interest, including, 
but not limited to, the consultants of any entity that has provided technical support on the Progressive  Design-Build 
project. 

(h) Any circumstances that would violate California Government Code 
Section 1090, et seq. 

2.3 Obligations of Proposers. 

2.3.1 Proposers shall make a full written disclosure to DPHCD of the facts and 
circumstances regarding an organizational conflict of interest or a potential organizational conflict of interest and shall 
have a continuing obligation to do so until they are no longer Proposers. 

2.3.2 Proposers shall disclose all relevant facts relating to past, present or planned 
interests of the Proposer’s Design-Build Team (including the Proposer, Proposer’s proposed consultants and 
subconsultants and subcontractors and their respective directors and key personnel) that may result in, or could be 
viewed as, an organizational conflict of interest in connection with any Progressive Design-Build project procurement, 
including present or planned contractual or employment relationships with any current DPHCD employee. 

2.3.3 Proposers shall disclose in the response documents to a Progressive Design-Build 
request for qualification and request for proposal all the work performed in relation to the particular proposed 
Progressive Design-Build project. 

2.3.4 If a Proposer determines that an organizational conflict of interest or potential 
organizational conflict of interest exists, it must disclose the conflict or potential conflict of interest to DPHCD.  
Subject to and within the sole discretion of DPHCD, such disclosure may not necessarily disqualify a Proposer from 
being awarded a contract.  The Proposer shall propose measures to avoid, neutralize, or mitigate all conflicts or 
potential conflicts.  DPHCD, in its sole discretion, shall determine whether the proposed measures are sufficient to 
overcome the conflict or potential conflict and whether the Proposer may continue with the procurement process.   

2.3.5 For other organizational conflicts of interest or potential organizational conflicts 
of interests not mentioned specifically above, such as conflicts involving employees changing companies, mergers 
and acquisitions of firms, property ownership, business arrangements, and financial interests, a Proposer shall disclose 
and address any organizational conflicts of interest or potential organizational conflicts of interest when participating 

8 of 54



DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

ORGANIZATIONAL CONFLICT-OF-INTEREST POLICY  
FOR PROGRESSIVE DESIGN-BUILD PROJECTS (Public Contract Code §§ 22185, et seq.) 

Page 3 of 3 

https://delpuerto.sharepoint.com/sites/hr2/shared documents/draft policies/1030 draft progressive design-build conflict of interest policy.docx
 12/31/2024 

in or joining a Progressive Design-Build Team.  DPHCD will determine if a conflict of interest exists applying the 
criteria set forth in the definition of organizational conflict of interest. 

2.4 Obligations After Contract Award.  The successful Proposer to whom a contract is 
awarded (“Contractor”) has an ongoing obligation to monitor and disclose its organizational conflicts of interest or 
potential organizational conflicts of interest.  DPHCD has the right to ongoing enforcement of this policy.  If an 
organizational conflict of interest is discovered after contract award, the Contractor must make an immediate and full 
written disclosure to DPHCD that includes a description of the action that the Contractor has taken or proposes to take 
to avoid or mitigate the conflict.  DPHCD has the right to cancel or amend a resulting Progressive Design-Build project 
contract if the successful Proposer failed to disclose a conflict or potential conflict that it knew or should have known 
about, or if the Proposer provided information in its disclosure that is false or misleading.  If a new organizational 
conflict of interest arises after contract award, and Contractor’s proposed measures to avoid or mitigate the conflict 
are determined by DPHCD to be inadequate to protect DPHCD, DPHCD may terminate the contract.  If the contract 
is terminated, DPHCD assumes no obligations, responsibilities, and liabilities to pay for or reimburse all or any part 
of the costs incurred or alleged to have been incurred by Contractor, and DPHCD is entitled to pursue any and all 
available legal remedies available to DPHCD to enforce its rights. 

2.5 Incorporation by Reference.  This policy shall be incorporated by reference into and 
included as part of all DPHCD Progressive Design-Build project requests for qualification and requests for proposal, 
and all DPHCD Progressive Design-Build contracts. 

 

9 of 54



10 of 54



BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
Board Meeting – January 13, 2025 

Resolution 2025-01: Declaration of Exempt Surplus Land Item # Title Page 1 of 2 

 

9b. res 2025-01 declaration of exempt surplus land.docx 1/9/2025 

Department:  Chief Executive Office CEO Concurrence:   Yes  

Consent Calendar: No 4/5 Vote Required: No 

 
 

SUBJECT:   Resolution 2025-01: Declaration of Exempt Surplus Land for the 
Property Located at 1700 Keystone Pacific Parkway, Building C, 
Patterson, CA 

STAFF REPORT: The resolution declares the 0.85-acre property located at 1700 Keystone 
Pacific Parkway, Building C, Patterson, CA (APN 021-088-010) as 
"Exempt Surplus Land" under Government Code Section 54221(f)(1)(C). 
The declaration supports the District's strategic goals by allowing for the 
disposition of this property, which is no longer needed for District use, in 
exchange for or to acquire another property necessary for District 
functions. 

DISTRICT PRIORITY: Aligns with the District’s mission to establish, maintain, and support 
health facilities and services in compliance with California Health & 
Safety Code Section 32121. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The sale of the property will generate revenue to be used for the 
acquisition of another property necessary for District use. 

STAFFING IMPACT: Noine 

CONTACT PERSON: Karin Freese, CEO 

ATTACHMENT(S): Resolution 2025-01: Declaration of Exempt Surplus Land 
 
RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION: 
 
ROLL CALL REQUIRED: YES  
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  I move that the Board of Directors approve Resolution No. 2025-01, 

declaring the property located at 1700 Keystone Pacific Parkway, 
Building C, Patterson, CA (APN 021-088-010), as 'Exempt Surplus Land' 
and authorizing the Chief Executive Officer and staff to proceed with its 
disposition for purposes consistent with agency use. 

 
Motion Made By Motion Second 
Director Avila   
Director Campo   
Director Ramirez   

11 of 54



BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
Board Meeting – January 13, 2025 

Resolution 2025-01: Declaration of Exempt Surplus Land Item # Title Page 2 of 2 

 

9b. res 2025-01 declaration of exempt surplus land.docx 1/9/2025 

Director Stokman   
Director Traore   

 
Roll Call Vote Aye No Abstain Absent 
Director Avila     
Director Campo     
Director Ramirez     
Director Stokman     
Director Traore     

 
 

12 of 54



DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT  
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-01 

 
A RESOLUTION DECLARING THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT  

1700 KEYSTONE PACIFIC PARKWAY, BUILDING C, PATTERSON, CA 95363  
AS EXEMPT SURPLUS LAND AND MAKING ASSOCIATED FINDINGS 

 
 

WHEREAS the Del Puerto Health Care District owns a 0.85 Acre property located at 
1700 Keystone Pacific Parkway, Building C, Patterson, CA 95363, APN 021-088-010; 
and 
 
WHEREAS the District has determined that the property is not considered necessary for 
the District’s use; and 
 
WHEREAS the District intends to dispose of the property via sale consistent with the 
powers in holds pursuant to California Health and Safety Code Section 32121 (c); and 
 
WHEREAS the disposal/sale directly furthers the express purpose of agency work or 
operations; and  
 
WHEREAS Government Code Section 54221(f)(1)(C) authorizes the District to declare 
property to be disposed of as “Exempt Surplus Land” where the property is exchanged 
for another that is necessary for the agency’s use; now 

 
 BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Del Puerto Health 
Care District as follows: 
 

1. The Board of Directors of the Del Puerto Health Care District finds 
that the 0.85 Acre property located at 1700 Keystone Pacific 
Parkway, Building C, Patterson, CA 95363, APN 021-088-010 
owned by the District is “exempt surplus property” and must be 
disposed of in order for the District to exchange it for a different 
property that is needed to support Agency government functions, 
agency work, or operations (for “agency use” consistent with the 
provisions of Government Code section 54221(c)(2)(B)) 

 
2. The Board of Directors of the Del Puerto Health Care District 

declares that the disposal of the property is necessary and directly 
furthers the express purpose of Agency work or operations. 
Specifically, disposal is necessary for Agency work to establish, 
maintain or provide assistance in the operation of, one or more 
health facilities or health services pursuant to California Health & 
Safety Code Section 32121. 

 

13 of 54



3.  The Board of Directors of the Del Puerto Health Care District further 
declares the 0.85 Acre property located at 1700 Keystone Pacific 
Parkway, Building C, Patterson, CA 95363, APN 021-088-010 
owned by the District is “exempt surplus property” and finds that the 
Agency is exchanging or applying the proceeds of the disposal of 
the property for the acquisition of another property necessary for 
the agency’s use pursuant to Government Code Section 
54221(f)(1)(C).     

 
4. That the Board of Directors of the Del Puerto Health Care District , 

hereby authorizes and directs staff to take all steps necessary and 
required to proceed with disposition of the property for purposes of 
providing affordable housing in compliance with Government Code 
Section 54221.   

 
  

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Del Puerto Health Care District at a special 
meeting held on January 13, 2025, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
              
       Anne Stokman, Board President 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
David G. Ritchie, Counsel Jasmine Sanchez, Board Clerk 

14 of 54



BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
Board Meeting – January 13, 2025 

9C. Resolution 2025-02: Approving the Sale Agreement for "Keystone C,"Item # Title Page 1 of 2 

 

https://delpuerto.sharepoint.com/sites/board/shared documents/board meetings/2025/01-jan 13 special meeting/9c. 
res 2025-02 sale of keystone c.docx 1/9/2025 

Department:  Chief Executive Office CEO Concurrence:   Yes  

Consent Calendar: No 4/5 Vote Required: No 

 
 

SUBJECT:   Resolution 2025-02: Approving the Sale Agreement for "Keystone 
C" Located at 1700 Keystone Pacific Parkway, Building C, 
Patterson, CA 

STAFF REPORT: The resolution authorizes the execution of the Purchase and Sale 
Agreement for Keystone C (APN #021-088-010-000), designating the 
Chief Executive Officer as the authorized signer. The resolution also 
ratifies prior actions and confirms the compliance of the sale with the 
Surplus Land Act. 

DISTRICT PRIORITY: This transaction supports the District's mission to facilitate health 
facilities and services as per California Health & Safety Code Section 
32121. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Revenue generation from the sale, with a mutually agreed purchase price 
of $2,000,000, along with other terms and conditions. 

STAFFING IMPACT: None 

CONTACT PERSON: Karin Freese 

ATTACHMENT(S): Resolution 2025-02 
 
RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION: 
 
ROLL CALL REQUIRED: YES 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  I move that the Board of Directors approve Resolution No. 2025-02, 

authorizing the Chief Executive Officer to execute the Sale Agreement for 
Keystone Building C, Stanislaus County Assessor Parcel No. 021-088-
010-000, located at 1700 Keystone Pacific Parkway, Patterson, CA, 
along with related actions necessary to effectuate the transaction. 

 
Motion Made By Motion Second 
Director Avila   
Director Campo   
Director Ramirez   
Director Stokman   
Director Traore   

15 of 54



BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
Board Meeting – January 13, 2025 

9C. Resolution 2025-02: Approving the Sale Agreement for "Keystone C,"Item # Title Page 2 of 2 

 

https://delpuerto.sharepoint.com/sites/board/shared documents/board meetings/2025/01-jan 13 special meeting/9c. 
res 2025-02 sale of keystone c.docx 1/9/2025 

 
Roll Call Vote Aye No Abstain Absent 
Director Avila     
Director Campo     
Director Ramirez     
Director Stokman     
Director Traore     

 
 

16 of 54



4925-6758-6061.1    

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-02 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DEL PUERTO 

HEALTH CARE DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF THE 
PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1700 
KEYSTONE PACIFIC PARKWAY, BUILDING C, PATTERSON, CA APN #021-

088-010-000 WITH VALLEY PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT RENTAL, INC. 
 

WHEREAS, the Del Puerto Health Care District (“Seller”) is the owner of the 
property more particularly described as Stanislaus County Assessor Parcel No. 
021-088-010-000 and described as Parcel F-2D, according to that plat entitled, 
"Parcel Map for Keystone Pacific Park Phase 7", filed December 21, 2005 in Book 
54 of Parcel Maps, Page 21, Stanislaus County Records., located at 1700 
Keystone Pacific Parkway, Building C in the City of Patterson, CA, County of 
Stanislaus; (the “Property”) and 
 
WHEREAS, The disposition/sale of the property is necessary and directly furthers 
the express purpose of District work or operations. Specifically, disposal is 
necessary for the District work to establish, maintain, or provide assistance in the 
operation of, one or more health facilities or health services pursuant to California 
Health & Safety Code Section 32121; and 
 
WHEREAS, on January 13, 2025, the District declared the Property as Exempt 
Surplus Land pursuant to and in compliance with the Surplus Land Act, 
Government Code Sections 54220-54233 (“the “Act”); and 
 
WHEREAS, Seller desires to sell to Valley Property And Equipment Rental, Inc 
(“Buyer”), a California Corporation for a mutually agreed purchase price of 
$2,000,000 along with other terms and conditions set forth in that certain Purchase 
and Sale Agreement for the transfer of fee title of the Property from the Seller to 
the Buyer as shown in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. That the Board of Directors of the Del Puerto Health Care District finds and 

determines that the foregoing recitals are true and correct and are 
incorporated herein as if set forth in full. In particular, the District specifically 
finds that the disposition of Property as described in the foregoing portion 
of this Resolution is in compliance with the Act. 

 
2. That the Board of Directors of the Del Puerto Health Care District approves 

the Purchase and Sale Agreement and authorizes the Chief Executive 
Officer to execute the Purchase and Sale Agreement for “Keystone C”, 
Stanislaus County Assessor Parcel No. 021-088-010-000 located at 1700 
Keystone Pacific Parkway in the City of Patterson, CA, attached as Exhibit 
A. 

 

17 of 54



4925-6758-6061.1    

3.  That the Board of Directors of the Del Puerto Health Care District authorizes 
the Chief Executive Officer and designees to take such action(s) (including 
but not limited to the execution of any certificates or other instruments) 
which the Chief Executive Officer may deem necessary or proper to 
effectuate the purposes of this Resolution, and any such actions previously 
taken are hereby ratified and confirmed.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
4. That the Board of Directors of the Del Puerto Health Care District finds that 

the act of authorizing the execution of the Purchase and Sale Agreement 
does not approve any new development or construction of any new 
buildings, nor does it authorize any new land uses. For this reason, it can 
be seen with certainty that authorizing the execution of the Purchase and 
Sale Agreement will not result in any significant adverse impact on the 
environment. Accordingly, this authorization is exempt from the CEQA 
environmental review requirements pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of Title 
14 of the California Code of Regulations. 

 
The foregoing resolution was adopted at a special meeting of the Board of 
Directors of the Del Puerto Health Care District held on the 13th day of January 
2025, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES:   
 
ABSTENTION:  
 
ABSENT:   
 

APPROVED:  
 
 
__________________________ 

     ANNE STOKMAN, President 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Jasmine Sanchez, Board Clerk   

18 of 54



BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

Board Meeting – January 13, 2025 

9D. Resolution 2025-03: Purchase of Mahaffey South PropertyItem # Title Page 1 of 2 

 

z:\sharedcloud\hydra\data\tmp\pool-6-thread-1-4209763646022480765.octo\c8551f43-e4e1-4b74-b1c2-
1fa3ebd03821.docx 1/10/2025 

Department:  Chief Executive Office CEO Concurrence:   Yes  

Consent Calendar: No 4/5 Vote Required: No 

 

 

SUBJECT:  Resolution 2025-03: Purchase of Mahaffey South Property 

STAFF REPORT:  The resolution authorizes the execution of the Purchase and Sale 

Agreement for the Mahaffey South property to expand healthcare 

facilities. The Chief Executive Officer is designated as the authorized 

signer and is authorized to perform all related actions to complete the 

acquisition, and prior actions are ratified to comply with the necessary 

regulations. 

DISTRICT PRIORITY:  This acquisition aligns with the District's mission to enhance healthcare 

services, supporting California Health & Safety Code Section 32121. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The purchase cost of $7,210,922 will be funded through a short-term 

loan until the long-term construction loan, guaranteed by the district’s 

property tax revenue, is funded. 

STAFFING IMPACT:  No additional staffing requirements are anticipated. 

CONTACT PERSON:  Karin Freese 

ATTACHMENT(S): Resolution No. 2025-03 

 Purchase and Sale Agreement for APNS #048-047-028-000 & 048-047-

027-000 & 048-047-018-000 & 048-047-007-000 & 048-047-008-000 & 

048-047-012-000 

 

 

RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION: 

 

ROLL CALL REQUIRED:  YES 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  I move that the Board of Directors approve Resolution No. 2025-03, 

authorizing the Chief Executive Officer to execute the Purchase 

Agreement for the Mahaffey South property and perform all related 

actions to complete the acquisition. 

 

Motion Made By Motion Second 

Director Avila   

Director Campo   

Director Ramirez   

19 of 54



BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

Board Meeting – January 13, 2025 

9D. Resolution 2025-03: Purchase of Mahaffey South PropertyItem # Title Page 2 of 2 

 

z:\sharedcloud\hydra\data\tmp\pool-6-thread-1-4209763646022480765.octo\c8551f43-e4e1-4b74-b1c2-
1fa3ebd03821.docx 1/10/2025 

Director Stokman   

Director Traore   

 

Roll Call Vote Aye No Abstain Absent 

Director Avila     

Director Campo     

Director Ramirez     

Director Stokman     

Director Traore     

 

 

20 of 54



Del Puerto Health Care District 

4925-6758-6061.1    

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-03 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DEL PUERTO HEALTH 
CARE DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION AND APPROVING THE 

EXECUTION OF A PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT FOR APNS #048-047-028-
000 & 048-047-027-000 & 048-047-018-000 & 048-047-007-000 & 048-047-008-000 & 

048-047-012-000, WITH THE MAHAFFEY FAMILY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 

 
WHEREAS, the Del Puerto Health Care District (“Buyer”) desires to purchase multiple 
parcels totaling approximately 27.59 AC of contiguous commercially zoned vacant land, 
more particularly described as 15611 S. 9th Street (+/-3.76 acres) & 736 W Las Palmas 
(+/-17.41 acres) & Sperry Road (048-047-12 - +/-3.55 acres) & 15607 S. 9th Street (+/-
.23 acres) & 15601 S 9th Street (+/- .20 acres) & 830 West Las Palmas (+/-2.44 acres) 
[APNS# 048-047-028-000 & 048-047-027-000 & 048-047-018-000 & 048-047-007-000 & 
048-047-008-000 & 048-047-012-000] (the “property”); and 
 
WHEREAS, The acquisition of the property is necessary and directly furthers the express 
purpose of District work or operations. Specifically, to establish, maintain or provide 
assistance in the operation of, one or more health facilities or health services pursuant to 
California Health & Safety Code Section 32121; and 
 
WHEREAS, the current owners of the property, The Mahaffey Family Limited Partnership, 
(a California Limited Partnership) (“Seller”) desire to sell the Property to the District; and 
for a mutually agreed purchase price of $7,210,922.00 along with other terms and 
conditions set forth in that certain Purchase and Sale Agreement for the transfer of fee 
title of the Property from the Seller to the Buyer as shown in Exhibit “A” attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by this reference 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. That the Board of Directors of the Del Puerto Health Care District finds and 

determines that the foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated 
herein as if set forth in full.  

 
2. That the Board of Directors of the Del Puerto Health Care District approves the 

Acquisition  and the Purchase and Sale Agreement and authorizes the Chief 
Executive Officer to execute the Purchase and Sale Agreement for 27.59 AC of 
contiguous commercially zoned vacant land, more particularly described as 15611 
S. 9th Street (+/-3.76 acres) & 736 W Las Palmas (+/-17.41 acres) & Sperry Road 
(048-047-12 - +/-3.55 acres) & 15607 S. 9th Street (+/-.23 acres) & 15601 S 9th 
Street (+/- .20 acres) & 830 West Las Palmas (+/-2.44 acres) [APNS# 048-047-
028-000 & 048-047-027-000 & 048-047-018-000 & 048-047-007-000 & 048-047-
008-000 & 048-047-012-000] in the City of Patterson, CA, attached as Exhibit A. 

 

21 of 54



Del Puerto Health Care District 

4925-6758-6061.1    

3.  That the Board of Directors of the Del Puerto Health Care District authorizes the 
Chief Executive Officer and designees to take such action(s) (including but not 
limited to the execution of any certificates or other instruments) which the Chief 
Executive Officer may deem necessary or proper to effectuate the purposes of this 
Resolution, and any such actions previously taken are hereby ratified and 
confirmed.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
4. That the Board of Directors of the Del Puerto Health Care District finds that The 

act of authorizing the execution of the Purchase and Sale Agreement does not 
approve any new development or construction of any new buildings, nor does it 
authorize any new land uses. For this reason, it can be seen with certainty that 
authorizing the execution of the Purchase and Sale Agreement will not result in 
any significant adverse impact on the environment. Accordingly, this authorization 
is exempt from the CEQA environmental review requirements pursuant to Section 
15061(b)(3) of Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations. 

 
The foregoing resolution was adopted at a special meeting of the Board of Directors of 
the Del Puerto Health Care District held on the 13th day of January 2025, by the following 
vote: 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES:   
 
ABSTENTION:  
 
ABSENT:   
 

APPROVED:  
 
 
       

     ANNE STOKMAN, Board President 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Jasmine Sanchez, Board Clerk   

22 of 54



________ ________

________ ________

INITIALS INITIALS

© 2019 AIR CRE. All Rights Reserved. Last Edited: 10/28/2024 1:37 PM

OFAL15.30, Revised 10132022 Page 1 of 10

STANDARD OFFER, AGREEMENT AND ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

FOR PURCHASE OF REAL ESTATE
(Vacant Land)

Dated: October 28, 2024

1. Buyer.

1.1 Del Puerto Health Care District or related entity , ("Buyer") hereby offers to purchase the real property,

hereina7er described, from the owner thereof ("Seller") (collec:vely, the "Par�es" or individually, a "Party"), through an escrow ("Escrow") to close 30 or

fifteen (15) days of expiration of Buyer's Due Diligence/Contingency Period days a7er the waiver

or sa:sfac:on of the Buyer's Con:ngencies, ("Expected Closing Date") to be held by Chicago Title Company/Melissa Corbin ("Escrow

Holder") whose address is 3203 W. March Lane Ste# 110, Stockton, CA 95207 , Phone No. 209-952-5500 ,

Facsimile No. upon the terms and condi:ons set forth in this agreement ("Agreement"). Buyer shall have the right to assign Buyer's rights hereunder,

but any such assignment shall not relieve Buyer of Buyer's obliga:ons herein unless Seller expressly releases Buyer.

1.2 The term "Date of Agreement" as used herein shall be the date when by execu:on and delivery (as defined in paragraph 20.2) of this document or a

subsequent counteroffer thereto, Buyer and Seller have reached agreement in wri:ng whereby Seller agrees to sell, and Buyer agrees to purchase, the Property upon

terms accepted by both Par:es.

2. Property.

2.1 The real property ("Property") that is the subject of this offer consists of (insert a brief physical descrip:on) Multiple Parcels of land

totaling approximate 27.59 acres of land is located in the County of Stanislaus , is commonly known as (street

address, city, state, zip) 15611 S. 9th Street (+/-3.76 acres) & 736 W Las Palmas (+/-17.41 acres) &

Sperry Road (048-047-12 - +/-3.55 acres) & 15607 S. 9th Street (+/-.23 acres) & 15601 S

9th Street (+/- .20 acres) & 830 West Las Palmas (+/-2.44 acres) and is legally described as: To be

provided by title company (APN: 048-047-028-000 & 048-047-027-000 & 048-047-018-000 &

048-047-007-000 & 048-047-008-000 & 048-047-012-000 .)

2.2 If the legal descrip:on of the Property is not complete or is inaccurate, this Agreement shall not be invalid and the legal descrip:on shall be completed or

corrected to meet the requirements of Chicago Title Company ("Title Company"), which shall issue the :tle policy hereina7er described.

2.3 The Property includes, at no addi:onal cost to Buyer, the permanent improvements thereon, including those items which pursuant to applicable law are a

part of the property, as well as the following items, if any, owned by Seller and at present located on the Property: N/A (collec:vely, the "Improvements").

2.4 Except as provided in Paragraph 2.3, the Purchase Price does not include Seller's personal property, furniture and furnishings, and N/A all of

which shall be removed by Seller prior to Closing.

3. Purchase Price.

3.1 The purchase price ("Purchase Price") to be paid by Buyer to Seller for the Property shall be $7,210,922 , or (complete only if

purchase price will be determined based on a per unit cost instead of a fixed price) per unit. The unit used to determine the Purchase Price shall be:

lot acre square foot other prora:ng areas of less than a full unit. The number of units shall be based on a calcula:on of total area of

the Property as cer:fied to the Par:es by a licensed surveyor in accordance with paragraph 9.1(g). However, the following rights of way and other areas will be

excluded from such calcula:on: . The Purchase Price shall be payable as follows:

(Strike any not applicable)

(a) Cash down payment, including the Deposit as defined in paragraph 4.3 (or if an all cash transac:on, the Purchase Price):

$7,210,922
(b) Amount of "New Loan" as defined in paragraph 5.1, if any:

(c) Buyer shall take :tle to the Property subject to and/or assume the following exis:ng deed(s) of trust ("Exis�ng Deed(s) of

Trust") securing the exis:ng promissory note(s) ("Exis�ng Note(s)"):

(i) An Exis:ng Note ("First Note") with an unpaid principal balance as of the Closing of approximately:

Said First Note is payable at per month, including interest at the rate of % per annum

un:l paid (and/or the en:re unpaid balance is due on ).

(ii) An Exis:ng Note ("Second Note") with an unpaid principal balance as of the Closing of approximately:

Said Second Note is payable at per month, including interest at the rate of % per

annum un:l paid (and/or the en:re unpaid balance is due on ).

(d) Buyer shall give Seller a deed of trust ("Purchase Money Deed of Trust") on the property, to secure the promissory note

of Buyer to Seller described in paragraph 6 ("Purchase Money Note") in the amount of:

Docusign Envelope ID: A03A1CF2-41E7-4755-BBE6-28BD3068FF84Docusign Envelope ID: C3BB553C-F2A7-41CB-80C7-4DBC05C06A47
23 of 54



________ ________

________ ________

INITIALS INITIALS

© 2019 AIR CRE. All Rights Reserved. Last Edited: 10/28/2024 1:37 PM

OFAL15.30, Revised 10132022 Page 2 of 10

3.2 If Buyer is taking 0tle to the Property subject to, or assuming, an Exis0ng Deed of Trust and such deed of trust permits the beneficiary to demand payment

of fees including, but not limited to, points, processing fees, and appraisal fees as a condi0on to the transfer of the Property, Buyer agrees to pay such fees up to a

maximum of 1.5% of the unpaid principal balance of the applicable Exis0ng Note.

4. Deposits.

4.1 Buyer has delivered to Broker a check in the sum of , payable to Escrow Holder, to be delivered by Broker to Escrow Holder within 2 or

business days a<er both Par0es have executed this Agreement and the executed Agreement has been delivered to EscrowHolder, or within 2 or

five business days a<er both Par0es have executed this Agreement and the executed Agreement has been delivered to EscrowHolder Buyer shall deliver to

Escrow Holder a check in the sum of $100,000 . If said check is not received by EscrowHolder within said 0me period then Seller may elect to unilaterally

terminate this transac0on by giving wri=en no0ce of such elec0on to EscrowHolder whereupon neither Party shall have any further liability to the other under this

Agreement. Should Buyer and Seller not enter into an agreement for purchase and sale, Buyer's check or funds shall, upon request by Buyer, be promptly returned to

Buyer.

4.2 Addi0onal deposits:

(a) Within 5 business days a<er the Date of Agreement, Buyer shall deposit with EscrowHolder the addi0onal sum of to be applied to the

Purchase Price at the Closing.

(b) Within 5 business days a<er the con0ngencies discussed in paragraph 9.1 (a) through (m) are approved or waived, Buyer shall deposit with Escrow

Holder the addi0onal sum of to be applied to the Purchase Price at the Closing.

(c) If an Addi0onal Deposit is not received by Escrow Holder within the 0me period provided then Seller may no0fy Buyer, EscrowHolder, and Brokers, in

wri0ng that, unless the Addi0onal Deposit is received by EscrowHolder within 2 business days following said no0ce, the Escrow shall be deemed terminated without

further no0ce or instruc0ons.

4.3 Escrow Holder shall deposit the funds deposited with it by Buyer pursuant to paragraphs 4.1 and 4.2 (collec0vely the "Deposit"), in a State or Federally

chartered bank in an interest bearing account whose term is appropriate and consistent with the 0ming requirements of this transac0on. The interest therefrom shall

accrue to the benefit of Buyer, who hereby acknowledges that there may be penal0es or interest forfeitures if the applicable instrument is redeemed prior to its

specifiedmaturity. Buyer's Federal Tax Iden0fica0on Number is . NOTE: Such interest bearing account cannot be opened un0l Buyer's Federal Tax

Iden0fica0on Number is provided.

4.4 Notwithstanding the foregoing, within 5 days a<er Escrow Holder receives themonies described in paragraph 4.1 above, Escrow Holder shall release $100

of said monies to Seller as and for independent considera0on for Seller's' execu0on of this Agreement and the gran0ng of the con0ngency period to Buyer as herein

provided. Such independent considera0on is nonrefundable to Buyer but shall be credited to the Purchase Price in the event that the purchase of the Property is

completed.

4.5 Upon waiver of all of Buyer's con0ngencies the Deposit shall become nonrefundable but applicable to the Purchase Price except in the event of a Seller

breach, or in the event that the Escrow is terminated pursuant to the provisions of Paragraph 9.1(n) (Destruc0on, Damage or Loss) or 9.1(o) (Material Change).

5. Financing Con�ngency. (Strike if not applicable)

5.1 This offer is con0ngent upon Buyer obtaining from an insurance company, financial ins0tu0on or other lender, a commitment to lend to Buyer a sum equal

to at least 50 % of the Purchase Price, on terms acceptable to Buyer. Such loan ("New Loan") shall be secured by a first deed of trust or mortgage on the

Property. If this Agreement provides for Seller to carry back junior financing, then Seller shall have the right to approve the terms of the New Loan. Seller shall have 7

days from receipt of the commitment seGng forth the proposed terms of the New Loan to approve or disapprove of such proposed terms. If Seller fails to no0fy

Escrow Holder, in wri0ng, of the disapproval within said 7 days it shall be conclusively presumed that Seller has approved the terms of the New Loan.

5.2 If Buyer shall fail to no�fy its Broker, EscrowHolder and Seller, in wri�ngwithin 180 days following the Date of Agreement, that the New Loan

has not been obtained, it shall be conclusively presumed that Buyer has either obtained said New Loan or has waived this New Loan con�ngency.

5.3 If Buyer shall no0fy its Broker, Escrow Holder and Seller, in wri0ng, within the 0me specified in paragraph 5.2 hereof, that Buyer has not obtained said New

Loan, this Agreement shall be terminated, and Buyer shall be en0tled to the prompt return of the Deposit, plus any interest earned thereon, less only Escrow Holder

and Title Company cancella0on fees and costs, which Buyer shall pay.

6. Seller Financing. (Purchase Money Note). (Strike if not applicable)

6.1 If Seller approves Buyer's financials (see paragraph 6.5) the Purchase Money Note shall provide for interest on unpaid principal at the rate of

% per annum, with principal and interest paid as follows: . The Purchase Money Note and Purchase Money Deed of Trust shall be on the current forms

commonly used by Escrow Holder, and be junior and subordinate only to the Exis0ng Note(s) and/or the New Loan expressly called for by this Agreement.

6.2 The PurchaseMoney Note and/or the PurchaseMoney Deed of Trust shall contain provisions regarding the following (see also paragraph 10.3 (b)):

(a) Prepayment. Principal may be prepaid in whole or in part at any 0mewithout penalty, at the op0on of the Buyer.

(b) Late Charge. A late charge of 6% shall be payable with respect to any payment of principal, interest, or other charges, not made within 10 days a<er

it is due.

(c) Due On Sale. In the event the Buyer sells or transfers 0tle to the Property or any por0on thereof, then the Seller may, at Seller's op0on, require the

en0re unpaid balance of said Note to be paid in full.

6.3 If the Purchase Money Deed of Trust is to be subordinate to other financing, Escrow Holder shall, at Buyer's expense prepare and record on Seller's behalf a

request for no0ce of default and/or sale with regard to each mortgage or deed of trust to which it will be subordinate.

6.4 WARNING: CALIFORNIA LAW DOES NOT ALLOWDEFICIENCY JUDGEMENTS ON SELLER FINANCING. IF BUYER ULTIMATELY DEFAULTS ON THE LOAN,

SELLER'S SOLE REMEDY IS TO FORECLOSE ON THE PROPERTY.

6.5 Seller's obliga0on to provide financing is con0ngent upon Seller's reasonable approval of Buyer's financial condi0on. Buyer to provide a current financial

statement and copies of its Federal tax returns for the last 3 years to Seller within 10 days following the Date of Agreement. Seller has 10 days following receipt of

such documenta0on to sa0sfy itself with regard to Buyer's financial condi0on and to no0fy EscrowHolder as to whether or not Buyer's financial condi0on is

acceptable. If Seller fails to no0fy EscrowHolder, in wri0ng, of the disapproval of this con0ngency within said 0me period, it shall be conclusively presumed that Seller

has approved Buyer's financial condi0on. If Seller is not sa0sfied with Buyer's financial condi0on or if Buyer fails to deliver the required documenta0on then Seller

may no0fy EscrowHolder in wri0ng that Seller Financing will not be available, and Buyer shall have the op0on, within 10 days of the receipt of such no0ce, to either

Docusign Envelope ID: A03A1CF2-41E7-4755-BBE6-28BD3068FF84Docusign Envelope ID: C3BB553C-F2A7-41CB-80C7-4DBC05C06A47
24 of 54



________ ________

________ ________

INITIALS INITIALS

© 2019 AIR CRE. All Rights Reserved. Last Edited: 10/28/2024 1:37 PM

OFAL15.30, Revised 10132022 Page 3 of 10

terminate this transac.on or to purchase the Property without Seller financing. If Buyer fails to no.fy Escrow Holder within said .me period of its elec.on to

terminate this transac.on then Buyer shall be conclusively presumed to have elected to purchase the Property without Seller financing. If Buyer elects to terminate,

Buyer's Deposit shall be refunded less Title Company and EscrowHolder cancella.on fees and costs, all of which shall be Buyer's obliga.on.

7. Real Estate Brokers.

7.1 Each Party acknowledges receiving a Disclosure Regarding Real Estate Agency Rela.onship, confirms and consents to the following agency rela.onships in

this transac.on with the following real estate broker(s) ("Brokers") and/or their agents (“Agent(s)”):

Seller's Brokerage Firm Lee & Associates - Central Valley, Inc. License No. 01166901 is the broker of (check

one): the Seller; or both the Buyer and Seller (dual agent).

Seller's Agent Christopher Sill License No. 01188616 is (check one): the Seller's Agent (salesperson or broker associate); or

both the Seller's Agent and the Buyer's Agent (dual agent).

Buyer's Brokerage Firm License No. is the broker of (check one): the Buyer; or both the Buyer and Seller (dual agent).

Buyer's Agent License No. is (check one): the Buyer's Agent (salesperson or broker associate); or both the Buyer's Agent

and the Seller's Agent (dual agent).

The Par.es acknowledge that other than the Brokers and Agents listed above, there are no other brokers or agents represen.ng the Par.es or due any fees and/or

commissions under this Agreement. Buyer shall use the services of Buyer's Broker exclusively in connec.on with any and all nego.a.ons and offers with respect to

the Property for a period of 1 year from the date inserted for reference purposes at the top of page 1.

7.2 Buyer and Seller each represent and warrant to the other that he/she/it has had no dealings with any person, firm, broker, agent or finder in connec.on

with the nego.a.on of this Agreement and/or the consumma.on of the purchase and sale contemplated herein, other than the Brokers and Agents named in

paragraph 7.1, and no broker, agent or other person, firm or en.ty, other than said Brokers and Agents is/are en.tled to any commission or finder's fee in connec.on

with this transac.on as the result of any dealings or acts of such Party. Buyer and Seller do each hereby agree to indemnify, defend, protect and hold the other

harmless from and against any costs, expenses or liability for compensa.on, commission or charges which may be claimed by any broker, agent, finder or other similar

party, other than said named Brokers and Agents by reason of any dealings or act of the indemnifying Party.

8. Escrow and Closing.

8.1 Upon acceptance hereof by Seller, this Agreement, including any counteroffers incorporated herein by the Par.es, shall cons.tute not only the agreement

of purchase and sale between Buyer and Seller, but also instruc.ons to EscrowHolder for the consumma.on of the Agreement through the Escrow. EscrowHolder

shall not prepare any further escrow instruc.ons resta.ng or amending the Agreement unless specifically so instructed by the Par.es or a Broker herein. Subject to

the reasonable approval of the Par.es, Escrow Holder may, however, include its standard general escrow provisions. In the event that there is any conflict between

the provisions of the Agreement and the provisions of any addi.onal escrow instruc.ons the provisions of the Agreement shall prevail as to the Par.es and the Escrow

Holder.

8.2 As soon as prac.cal aEer the receipt of this Agreement and any relevant counteroffers, Escrow Holder shall ascertain the Date of Agreement as defined in

paragraphs 1.2 and 20.2 and advise the Par.es and Brokers, in wri.ng, of the date ascertained.

8.3 Escrow Holder is hereby authorized and instructed to conduct the Escrow in accordance with this Agreement, applicable law and custom and prac.ce of

the community in which EscrowHolder is located, including any repor.ng requirements of the Internal Revenue Code. In the event of a conflict between the law of

the state where the Property is located and the law of the state where the Escrow Holder is located, the law of the state where the Property is located shall prevail.

8.4 Subject to sa.sfac.on of the con.ngencies herein described, EscrowHolder shall close this escrow (the "Closing") by recording a general warranty deed (a

grant deed in California) and the other documents required to be recorded, and by disbursing the funds and documents in accordance with this Agreement.

8.5 Buyer and Seller shall each pay onehalf of the Escrow Holder's charges and Seller shall pay the usual recording fees and any required documentary transfer

taxes. Seller shall payone half of the premium for a standard coverage owner's or joint protec.on policy of .tle insurance. (See also paragraph 11.)

8.6 Escrow Holder shall verify that all of Buyer's con.ngencies have been sa.sfied or waived prior to Closing. ThemaIers contained in paragraphs 9.1

subparagraphs (b), (c), (d), (e), (g), (i), (n), and (o), 9.4, 12, 13, 14, 16, 18, 20, 21, 22, and 24 are, however, maIers of agreement between the Par.es only and are not

instruc.ons to Escrow Holder.

8.7 If this transac.on is terminated for nonsa.sfac.on and nonwaiver of a Buyer's Con.ngency, as defined in Paragraph 9.2 or disapproval of any other

maIer subject to Buyer's approval, then neither of the Par.es shall thereaEer have any liability to the other under this Agreement, except to the extent of a breach of

any affirma.ve covenant or warranty in this Agreement. In the event of such termina.on, Buyer shall, subject to the provisions of paragraph 8.10, be promptly

refunded all funds deposited by Buyer with EscrowHolder, less only the $100 provided for in paragraph 4.4 and the Title Company and Escrow Holder cancella.on

fees and costs, all of which shall be Buyer's obliga.on. If this transac.on is terminated as a result of Seller's breach of this Agreement then Seller shall pay the Title

Company and Escrow Holder cancella.on fees and costs.

8.8 The Closing shall occur on the Expected Closing Date, or as soon thereaEer as the Escrow is in condi.on for Closing; provided, however, that if the Closing

does not occur by the Expected Closing Date and said Date is not extended bymutual instruc.ons of the Par.es, a Party not then in default under this Agreement may

no.fy the other Party, EscrowHolder, and Brokers, in wri.ng that, unless the Closing occurs within 5 business days following said no.ce, the Escrow shall be deemed

terminated without further no.ce or instruc.ons.

8.9 Except as otherwise provided herein, the termina.on of Escrow shall not relieve or release either Party from any obliga.on to pay Escrow Holder's fees and

costs or cons.tute a waiver, release or discharge of any breach or default that has occurred in the performance of the obliga.ons, agreements, covenants or

warran.es contained therein.

8.10 If this Escrow is terminated for any reason other than Seller's breach or default, then as a condi.on to the return of Buyer's deposit, Buyer shall within 5

days aEer wriIen request deliver to Seller, at no charge, copies of all surveys, engineering studies, soil reports, maps, master plans, feasibility studies and other similar

items prepared by or for Buyer that pertain to the Property.

9. Con�ngencies to Closing.

9.1 IF, BEFORE EXPIRATION OF THE APPLICABLE TIME, BUYER FAILS TO PROVIDE ESCROWHOLDER WRITTENNOTICE OF BUYER'S DISAPPROVAL OF ANY OF

BUYER'S CONTINGENCIES OR ANY OTHERMATTER THAT IS SUBJECT TO BUYER'S APPROVAL IN THIS AGREEMENT, THEN BUYER SHALL BE CONCLUSIVELY DEEMED

TOHAVE SATISFIED SUCH BUYER'S CONTINGENCIES AND/OR APPROVEDOF SUCHOTHER MATTERS. If a number of days is completed in any of the op.onal spaces

in subparagraphs 9.1 (a) through (m), then such number shall apply and override the preprinted number, even if the preprinted number is not stricken. The Closing

of this transac.on is con.ngent upon the sa.sfac.on or waiver of the following con.ngencies:

Docusign Envelope ID: A03A1CF2-41E7-4755-BBE6-28BD3068FF84Docusign Envelope ID: C3BB553C-F2A7-41CB-80C7-4DBC05C06A47
25 of 54



________ ________

________ ________

INITIALS INITIALS

© 2019 AIR CRE. All Rights Reserved. Last Edited: 10/28/2024 1:37 PM

OFAL15.30, Revised 10132022 Page 4 of 10

(a) Disclosure. Seller shall make to Buyer, through Escrow, all of the applicable disclosures required by law (See AIR CRE ("AIR") standard form en.tled

"Seller'sMandatory Disclosure Statement") and provide Buyer with a completed Property Informa.on Sheet ("Property Informa�on Sheet") concerning the Property,

duly executed by or on behalf of Seller in the current form or equivalent to that published by the AIR within 10 or days following the Date of

Agreement. Buyer has 10 days from the receipt of said disclosures to approve or disapprove themaIers disclosed.

(b) Physical Inspec�on. Buyer has 10 or 180 days following the receipt of the Property Informa.on Sheet or the Date of Agreement, whichever

is later, to sa.sfy itself with regard to the physical aspects and size of the Property.

(c) Hazardous Substance Condi�ons Report/Environmental Contamination Assessment Report. Buyer has 30 or
180 days following the receipt of the Property Informa.on Sheet or the Date of Agreement, whichever is later, to sa.sfy itself with regard to the

environmental aspects of the Property. Seller recommends that Buyer obtain a Hazardous Substance Condi.ons Report concerning the Property and relevant

adjoining proper.es. Any such report shall be paid for by Buyer. A "Hazardous Substance" for purposes of this Agreement is defined as any substance whose nature

and/or quan.ty of existence, use, manufacture, disposal or effect, render it subject to Federal, state or local regula.on, inves.ga.on, remedia.on or removal as

poten.ally injurious to public health or welfare. A "Hazardous Substance Condi�on" for purposes of this Agreement is defined as the existence on, under or

relevantly adjacent to the Property of a Hazardous Substance that would require remedia.on and/or removal under applicable Federal, state or local law.

(d) Soil Inspec�on/Environmental Contamination Assessment. Buyer has 30 or 180 days following the receipt of

the Property Informa.on Sheet or the Date of Agreement, whichever is later, to sa.sfy itself with regard to the condi.on of the soils on the Property. Seller

recommends that Buyer obtain a soil test report. Any such report shall be paid for by Buyer. Seller shall provide Buyer copies of any soils report that Sellermay have

within 10 days following the Date of Agreement.

(e) Governmental Approvals. Buyer has 30 or 180 days following the Date of Agreement to sa.sfy itself with regard to approvals and permits

from governmental agencies or departments which have or may have jurisdic.on over the Property and which Buyer deems necessary or desirable in connec.on with

its intended use of the Property, including, but not limited to, permits and approvals required with respect to zoning, planning, building and safety, fire, police,

handicapped and Americans with Disabili.es Act requirements, transporta.on and environmental maIers.

NOTE: Past uses of the Property may no longer be allowed. In the event that the Property must be rezoned, it is Buyer's responsibility to obtain the rezoning from the

appropriate government agencies. Seller shall sign all documents Buyer is required to file in connec.on with rezoning, condi.onal use permits and/or other

development approvals.

(f) Condi�ons of Title. EscrowHolder shall cause a current commitment for .tle insurance ("Title Commitment") concerning the Property issued by the

Title Company, as well as legible copies of all documents referred to in the Title Commitment ("Underlying Documents"), and a scaled and dimensioned plot showing

the loca.on of any easements to be delivered to Buyer within 10 or - days following the Date of Agreement. Buyer has 10 days from the receipt of the

Title Commitment, the Underlying Documents and the plot plan to sa.sfy itself with regard to the condi.on of .tle. The disapproval by Buyer of any monetary

encumbrance, which by the terms of this Agreement is not to remain against the Property aEer the Closing, shall not be considered a failure of this con.ngency, as

Seller shall have the obliga.on, at Seller's expense, to sa.sfy and remove such disapproved monetary encumbrance at or before the Closing.

(g) Survey. Buyer has 30 or - days following the receipt of the Title Commitment and Underlying Documents to sa.sfy itself with regard to

any ALTA .tle supplement based upon a survey prepared to American Land Title Associa.on ("ALTA") standards for an owner's policy by a licensed surveyor, showing

the legal descrip.on and boundary lines of the Property, any easements of record, and any improvements, poles, structures and things located within 10 feet of either

side of the Property boundary lines. Any such survey shall be prepared at Buyer's direc.on and expense. If Buyer has obtained a survey and approved the ALTA .tle

supplement, Buyer may elect within the period allowed for Buyer's approval of a survey to have an ALTA extended coverage owner's form of .tle policy, in which event

Buyer shall pay any addi.onal premium aIributable thereto.

(h) Exis�ng Leases and Tenancy Statements. Seller shall within 10 or - days following the Date of Agreement provide both Buyer and Escrow

Holder with legible copies of all leases, subleases or rental arrangements (collec.vely, "Exis�ng Leases") affec.ng the Property, and with a tenancy statement

("Estoppel Cer�ficate") in the latest form or equivalent to that published by the AIR, executed by Seller and/or each tenant and subtenant of the Property. Seller shall

use its best efforts to have each tenant complete and execute an Estoppel Cer.ficate. If any tenant fails or refuses to provide an Estoppel Cer.ficate then Seller shall

complete and execute an Estoppel Cer.ficate for that tenancy. Buyer has 10 days from the receipt of said Exis.ng Leases and Estoppel Cer.ficates to sa.sfy itself with

regard to the Exis.ng Leases and any other tenancy issues.

(i) Owner's Associa�on. Seller shall within 10 or - days following the Date of Agreement provide Buyer with a statement and transfer

package from any owner's associa.on servicing the Property. Such transfer package shall at a minimum include: copies of the associa.on's bylaws, ar.cles of

incorpora.on, current budget and financial statement. Buyer has 10 days from the receipt of such documents to sa.sfy itself with regard to the associa.on.

(j) Other Agreements. Seller shall within 10 or - days following the Date of Agreement provide Buyer with legible copies of all other

agreements ("Other Agreements") known to Seller that will affect the Property aEer Closing. Buyer has 10 days from the receipt of said Other Agreements to sa.sfy

itself with regard to such Agreements.

(k) Financing. If paragraph 5 hereof dealing with a financing con.ngency has not been stricken, the sa.sfac.on or waiver of such New Loan con.ngency.

(l) Exis�ng Notes. If paragraph 3.1(c) has not been stricken, Seller shall within 10 or days following the Date of Agreement provide Buyer

with legible copies of the Exis.ng Notes, Exis.ng Deeds of Trust and related agreements (collec.vely, "Loan Documents") to which the Property will remain subject

aEer the Closing. EscrowHolder shall promptly request from the holders of the Exis.ng Notes a beneficiary statement ("Beneficiary Statement") confirming: (1) the

amount of the unpaid principal balance, the current interest rate, and the date to which interest is paid, and (2) the nature and amount of any impounds held by the

beneficiary in connec.on with such loan. Buyer has 10 or days following the receipt of the Loan Documents and Beneficiary Statements to sa.sfy itself

with regard to such financing. Buyer's obliga.on to close is condi.oned upon Buyer being able to purchase the Property without accelera.on or change in the terms

of any Exis.ng Notes or charges to Buyer except as otherwise provided in this Agreement or approved by Buyer, provided, however, Buyer shall pay the transfer fee

referred to in paragraph 3.2 hereof. Likewise if Seller is to carry back a Purchase Money Note then Seller shall within 10 or days following the Date of

Agreement provide Buyer with a copy of the proposed Purchase Money Note and Purchase Money Deed of Trust. Buyer has 10 or days from the

receipt of such documents to sa.sfy itself with regard to the form and content thereof.

(m) Personal Property. In the event that any personal property is included in the Purchase Price, Buyer has 10 or 30 days following the Date of

Agreement to sa.sfy itself with regard to the .tle condi.on of such personal property. Seller recommends that Buyer obtain a UCC1 report. Any such report shall be

paid for by Buyer. Seller shall provide Buyer copies of any liens or encumbrances affec.ng such personal property that it is aware of within 10 or - days

following the Date of Agreement.

(n) Destruc�on, Damage or Loss. Subsequent to the Date of Agreement and prior to Closing there shall not have occurred a destruc.on of, or damage or

Docusign Envelope ID: A03A1CF2-41E7-4755-BBE6-28BD3068FF84Docusign Envelope ID: C3BB553C-F2A7-41CB-80C7-4DBC05C06A47
26 of 54



________ ________

________ ________

INITIALS INITIALS

© 2019 AIR CRE. All Rights Reserved. Last Edited: 10/28/2024 1:37 PM

OFAL15.30, Revised 10132022 Page 5 of 10

loss to, the Property or any por.on thereof, from any cause whatsoever, which would cost more than $10,000.00 to repair or cure. If the cost of repair or cure is

$10,000.00 or less, Seller shall repair or cure the loss prior to the Closing. Buyer shall have the op.on, within 10 days a5er receipt of wri6en no.ce of a loss cos.ng

more than $10,000.00 to repair or cure, to either terminate this Agreement or to purchase the Property notwithstanding such loss, but without deduc.on or offset

against the Purchase Price. If the cost to repair or cure is more than $10,000.00, and Buyer does not elect to terminate this Agreement, Buyer shall be en.tled to any

insurance proceeds applicable to such loss. Unless otherwise no.fied in wri.ng, Escrow Holder shall assume no such destruc.on, damage or loss has occurred prior

to Closing.

(o) Material Change. Buyer shall have 10 days following receipt of wri6en no.ce of aMaterial Change within which to sa.sfy itself with regard to such

change. "Material Change" shall mean a substan.al adverse change in the use, occupancy, tenants, .tle, or condi.on of the Property that occurs a5er the date of this

offer and prior to the Closing. Unless otherwise no.fied in wri.ng, Escrow Holder shall assume that noMaterial Change has occurred prior to the Closing.

(p) Seller Performance. The delivery of all documents and the due performance by Seller of each and every undertaking and agreement to be performed

by Seller under this Agreement.

(q) Brokerage Fee. Payment at the Closing of such brokerage fee as is specified in this Agreement or later wri6en instruc.ons to EscrowHolder executed

by Seller and Brokers ("Brokerage Fee"). It is agreed by the Par.es and EscrowHolder that Brokers are a third party beneficiary of this Agreement insofar as the

Brokerage Fee is concerned, and that no change shall be made with respect to the payment of the Brokerage Fee specified in this Agreement, without the wri6en

consent of Brokers.

9.2 The con.ngencies specified in subparagraphs 9.1(a) through (m) are for the benefit of, andmay be waived by, Buyer, and are referred to collec.vely as

"Buyer's Con�ngencies" and individually as a "Buyer's Con�ngency."

9.3 Buyer's .mely and wri6en disapproval or condi.onal approval of a Buyer's Con.ngency or any other ma6er that is subject to Buyer's approval in this

Agreement shall cons.tute disapproval thereof ("Disapproved Item(s)"). Concurrent with no.ce of a Disapproved Item, Buyer maymake a request to Seller regarding

such Disapproved Item ("Buyer's Request"). If Buyer fails to make a .mely and wri6en Buyer's Request, then this Agreement shall terminate due to the

nonsa.sfac.on and nonwaiver of a con.ngency. Sellermay respond to a Buyer's Request within 10 days following Seller's receipt thereof ("Seller's Response").

Seller's acceptance of a Buyer's Request shall amend this Agreement accordingly. If Seller fails to provide a .mely and wri6en Seller's Response, then Seller's

Response shall be deemed to be a rejec.on of Buyer's Request. Buyer may, within 10 days following the earlier of Buyer's receipt of a Seller's Response (which is not

an acceptance of Buyer's Request) or the date of Seller's deemed rejec.on of a Buyer's Request ("Buyer's Reply Period"), reply to a Seller's Response ("Buyer's

Reply") and elect to (i) terminate this Agreement due to the nonsa.sfac.on and nonwaiver of the applicable con.ngency, (ii) accept the Seller's Response in which

event this Agreement shall be amended accordingly, or (iii) withdraw Buyer's Request and waive the Disapproved Item inwhich event Buyer shall accept the Property

subject to the Disapproved Item. If Buyer fails to provide a .mely and wri6en Buyer's Reply, then Buyer shall be deemed to have elected to terminate this Agreement

as of the end of the Buyer's Reply Period. The date Buyer accepts a Seller's Response or withdraws a Buyer's Request and waives a Disapproved Item shall be the date

of Buyer's approval of the Disapproved Item. A Party shall provide to Escrow Holder copy of all no.ces of a Disapproved Item, Buyer's Request, Seller's Response and

Buyer's Reply and Escrow Holder shall promptly provide copies thereof to the other Party. Unless the Par.es in wri.ng agree otherwise, if the Expected Closing Date

is a specific calendar date and a Buyer's Reply Period expires a5er such specific calendar date, then notwithstanding paragraph 1.1, the Expected Closing Date shall be

extended to be 3 business days a5er the earlier of the date Buyer withdraws a Buyer's Request and waives the applicable Disapproved Item or Buyer accepts the

applicable Seller's Response.

9.4 The Par.es acknowledge that extensive local, state and Federal legisla.on establish broad liability upon owners and/or users of real property for the

inves.ga.on and remedia.on of Hazardous Substances. The determina.on of the existence of a Hazardous Substance Condi.on and the evalua.on of the impact of

such a condi.on are highly technical and beyond the exper.se of Brokers. The Par.es acknowledge that they have been advised by Brokers to consult their own

technical and legal experts with respect to the possible presence of Hazardous Substances on the Property or adjoining proper.es, and Buyer and Seller are not

relying upon any inves.ga.on by or statement of Brokers with respect thereto. The Par.es hereby assume all responsibility for the impact of such Hazardous

Substances upon their respec.ve interests herein.

10. Documents Required at or Before Closing.

10.1 Five days prior to the Closing date EscrowHolder shall obtain an updated Title Commitment concerning the Property from the Title Company and provide

copies thereof to each of the Par.es.

10.2 Seller shall deliver to EscrowHolder in .me for delivery to Buyer at the Closing:

(a) Grant or general warranty deed, duly executed and in recordable form, conveying fee .tle to the Property to Buyer.

(b) If applicable, the Beneficiary Statements concerning Exis.ng Note(s).

(c) If applicable, the Exis.ng Leases and Other Agreements together with duly executed assignments thereof by Seller and Buyer. The assignment of

Exis.ng Leases shall be on themost recent Assignment and Assump.on of Lessor's Interest in Lease form published by the AIR or its equivalent.

(d) An affidavit executed by Seller to the effect that Seller is not a "foreign person" within themeaning of Internal Revenue Code Sec.on 1445 or

successor statutes. If Seller does not provide such affidavit in form reasonably sa.sfactory to Buyer at least 3 business days prior to the Closing, Escrow Holder shall at

the Closing deduct from Seller's proceeds and remit to the Internal Revenue Service such sum as is required by applicable Federal lawwith respect to purchases from

foreign sellers.

(e) If the Property is located in California, an affidavit executed by Seller to the effect that Seller is not a ''nonresident" within the meaning of California

Revenue and Tax Code Sec.on 18662 or successor statutes. If Seller does not provide such affidavit in form reasonably sa.sfactory to Buyer at least 3 business days

prior to the Closing, Escrow Holder shall at the Closing deduct from Seller's proceeds and remit to the Franchise Tax Board such sum as is required by such statute.

(f) If applicable, a bill of sale, duly executed, conveying .tle to any included personal property to Buyer.

(g) If the Seller is a corpora.on, a duly executed corporate resolu.on authorizing the execu.on of this Agreement and the sale of the Property.

10.3 Buyer shall deliver to Seller through Escrow:

(a) The cash por.on of the Purchase Price and such addi.onal sums as are required of Buyer under this Agreement shall be deposited by Buyer with

Escrow Holder, by federal funds wire transfer, or any other method acceptable to Escrow Holder in immediately collectable funds, no later than 2:00 P.M. on the

business day prior to the Expected Closing Date provided, however, that Buyer shall not be required to deposit such monies into Escrow if at the .me set for the

deposit of suchmonies Seller is in default or has indicated that it will not perform any of its obliga.ons hereunder. Instead, in such circumstances in order to reserve

its rights to proceed Buyer need only provide Escrow with evidence establishing that the required monies were available.

(b) If a Purchase Money Note and Purchase Money Deed of Trust are called for by this Agreement, the duly executed originals of those documents, the

Purchase Money Deed of Trust being in recordable form, together with evidence of fire insurance on the improvements in the amount of the full replacement cost

naming Seller as a mortgage loss payee, and a real estate tax service contract (at Buyer's expense), assuring Seller of no.ce of the status of payment of real property

taxes during the life of the Purchase Money Note.

(c) The Assignment and Assump.on of Lessor's Interest in Lease form specified in paragraph 10.2(c) above, duly executed by Buyer.

Docusign Envelope ID: A03A1CF2-41E7-4755-BBE6-28BD3068FF84Docusign Envelope ID: C3BB553C-F2A7-41CB-80C7-4DBC05C06A47
27 of 54



________ ________

________ ________

INITIALS INITIALS

© 2019 AIR CRE. All Rights Reserved. Last Edited: 10/28/2024 1:37 PM

OFAL15.30, Revised 10132022 Page 6 of 10

(d) Assump1ons duly executed by Buyer of the obliga1ons of Seller that accrue a8er Closing under any Other Agreements.

(e) If applicable, a wri:en assump1on duly executed by Buyer of the loan documents with respect to Exis1ng Notes.

(f) If the Buyer is a corpora1on, a duly executed corporate resolu1on authorizing the execu1on of this Agreement and the purchase of the Property.

10.4 At Closing, Escrow Holder shall cause to be issued to Buyer a standard coverage (or ALTA extended, if elected pursuant to 9.1(g)) owner's form policy of 1tle

insurance effec1ve as of the Closing, issued by the Title Company in the full amount of the Purchase Price, insuring 1tle to the Property vested in Buyer, subject only to

the excep1ons approved by Buyer. In the event there is a Purchase Money Deed of Trust in this transac1on, the policy of 1tle insurance shall be a joint protec1on

policy insuring both Buyer and Seller.

IMPORTANT: IN A PURCHASE OR EXCHANGEOF REAL PROPERTY, ITMAY BE ADVISABLE TO OBTAIN TITLE INSURANCE IN CONNECTION WITH THE CLOSE OF

ESCROWSINCE THEREMAY BE PRIOR RECORDED LIENS AND ENCUMBRANCESWHICH AFFECT YOUR INTEREST IN THE PROPERTY BEING ACQUIRED. A NEWPOLICY

OF TITLE INSURANCE SHOULD BE OBTAINED IN ORDER TO ENSURE YOUR INTEREST IN THE PROPERTY THAT YOUARE ACQUIRING.

11. Prora�ons and Adjustments.

11.1 Taxes. Applicable real property taxes and special assessment bonds shall be prorated through Escrow as of the date of the Closing, based upon the latest

tax bill available. The Par1es agree to prorate as of the Closing any taxes assessed against the Property by supplemental bill levied by reason of events occurring prior

to the Closing. Payment of the prorated amount shall be made promptly in cash upon receipt of a copy of any supplemental bill.

11.2 Insurance. WARNING: Any insurance which Seller may have maintainedwill terminate on the Closing. Buyer is advised to obtain appropriate insurance to

cover the Property.

11.3 Rentals, Interest and Expenses. Scheduled rentals, interest on Exis1ng Notes, u1li1es, and opera1ng expenses shall be prorated as of the date of Closing.

The Par1es agree to promptly adjust between themselves outside of Escrow any rents received a8er the Closing.

11.4 Security Deposit. Security Deposits held by Seller shall be given to Buyer as a credit to the cash required of Buyer at the Closing.

11.5 Post ClosingMa�ers. Any item to be prorated that is not determined or determinable at the Closing shall be promptly adjusted by the Par1es by

appropriate cash payment outside of the Escrow when the amount due is determined.

11.6 Varia�ons in Exis�ng Note Balances. In the event that Buyer is purchasing the Property subject to an Exis1ng Deed of Trust(s), and in the event that a

Beneficiary Statement as to the applicable Exis1ng Note(s) discloses that the unpaid principal balance of such Exis1ng Note(s) at the closing will be more or less than

the amount set forth in paragraph 3.1(c) hereof ("Exis�ng Note Varia�on"), then the Purchase Money Note(s) shall be reduced or increased by an amount equal to

such Exis1ng Note Varia1on. If there is to be no Purchase Money Note, the cash required at the Closing per paragraph 3.1(a) shall be reduced or increased by the

amount of such Exis1ng Note Varia1on.

11.7 Varia�ons in New Loan Balance. In the event Buyer is obtaining a New Loan and the amount ul1mately obtained exceeds the amount set forth in

paragraph 5.1, then the amount of the Purchase Money Note, if any, shall be reduced by the amount of such excess.

11.8 Owner's Associa�on Fees. Escrow Holder shall: (i) bring Seller's account with the associa1on current and pay any delinquencies or transfer fees from

Seller's proceeds, and (ii) pay any up front fees required by the associa1on from Buyer's funds.

12. Representa�ons andWarran�es of Seller and Disclaimers.

12.1 Seller's warran1es and representa1ons shall survive the Closing and delivery of the deed for a period of 3 years, and any lawsuit or ac1on based upon them

must be commenced within such 1me period. Seller's warran1es and representa1ons are true, material and relied upon by Buyer and Brokers in all respects. Seller

hereby makes the following warran1es and representa1ons to Buyer and Brokers:

(a) Authority of Seller. Seller is the owner of the Property and/or has the full right, power and authority to sell, convey and transfer the Property to Buyer

as provided herein, and to perform Seller's obliga1ons hereunder.

(b) Maintenance During Escrow and Equipment Condi�on At Closing. Except as otherwise provided in paragraph 9.1(n) hereof, Seller shall maintain the

Property un1l the Closing in its present condi1on, ordinary wear and tear excepted.

(c) Hazardous Substances/Storage Tanks. Seller has no knowledge, except as otherwise disclosed to Buyer in wri1ng, of the existence or prior existence

on the Property of any Hazardous Substance, nor of the existence or prior existence of any above or below ground storage tank.

(d) Compliance. Except as otherwise disclosed in wri1ng, Seller has no knowledge of any aspect or condi1on of the Property which violates applicable

laws, rules, regula1ons, codes or covenants, condi1ons or restric1ons, or of improvements or altera1ons made to the Property without a permit where one was

required, or of any unfulfilled order or direc1ve of any applicable governmental agency or casualty insurance company requiring any inves1ga1on, remedia1on, repair,

maintenance or improvement be performed on the Property.

(e) Changes in Agreements. Prior to the Closing, Seller will not violate or modify any Exis1ng Lease or Other Agreement, or create any new leases or

other agreements affec1ng the Property, without Buyer's wri:en approval, which approval will not be unreasonably withheld.

(f) Possessory Rights. Seller has no knowledge that anyone will, at the Closing, have any right to possession of the Property, except as disclosed by this

Agreement or otherwise in wri1ng to Buyer.

(g) Mechanics' Liens. There are no unsa1sfiedmechanics' or materialmens' lien rights concerning the Property.

(h) Ac�ons, Suits or Proceedings. Seller has no knowledge of any ac1ons, suits or proceedings pending or threatened before any commission, board,

bureau, agency, arbitrator, court or tribunal that would affect the Property or the right to occupy or u1lize same.

(i) No�ce of Changes. Seller will promptly no1fy Buyer and Brokers in wri1ng of anyMaterial Change (see paragraph 9.1(o)) affec1ng the Property that

becomes known to Seller prior to the Closing.

(j) No Tenant Bankruptcy Proceedings. Seller has no no1ce or knowledge that any tenant of the Property is the subject of a bankruptcy or insolvency

proceeding.

(k) No Seller Bankruptcy Proceedings. Seller is not the subject of a bankruptcy, insolvency or probate proceeding.

(l) Personal Property. Seller has no knowledge that anyone will, at the Closing, have any right to possession of any personal property included in the

Purchase Price nor knowledge of any liens or encumbrances affec1ng such personal property, except as disclosed by this Agreement or otherwise in wri1ng to Buyer.

12.2 Buyer hereby acknowledges that, except as otherwise stated in this Agreement, Buyer is purchasing the Property in its exis1ng condi1on and will, by the

1me called for herein, make or have waived all inspec1ons of the Property Buyer believes are necessary to protect its own interest in, and its contemplated use of, the

Property. The Par1es acknowledge that, except as otherwise stated in this Agreement, no representa1ons, inducements, promises, agreements, assurances, oral or

wri:en, concerning the Property, or any aspect of the occupa1onal safety and health laws, Hazardous Substance laws, or any other act, ordinance or law, have been

made by either Party or Brokers, or relied upon by either Party hereto.

12.3 In the event that Buyer learns that a Seller representa1on or warrantymight be untrue prior to the Closing, and Buyer elects to purchase the Property

anyway then, and in that event, Buyer waives any right that it may have to bring an ac1on or proceeding against Seller or Brokers regarding said representa1on or

warranty.

Docusign Envelope ID: A03A1CF2-41E7-4755-BBE6-28BD3068FF84Docusign Envelope ID: C3BB553C-F2A7-41CB-80C7-4DBC05C06A47
28 of 54



________ ________

________ ________

INITIALS INITIALS

© 2019 AIR CRE. All Rights Reserved. Last Edited: 10/28/2024 1:37 PM

OFAL15.30, Revised 10132022 Page 7 of 10

12.4 Any environmental reports, soils reports, surveys, feasibility studies, and other similar documents which were prepared by third party consultants and

provided to Buyer by Seller or Seller's representa5ves, have been delivered as an accommoda5on to Buyer and without any representa5on or warranty as to the

sufficiency, accuracy, completeness, and/or validity of said documents, all of which Buyer relies on at its own risk. Seller believes said documents to be accurate, but

Buyer is advised to retain appropriate consultants to review said documents and inves5gate the Property.

13. Possession.

Possession of the Property shall be given to Buyer at the Closing subject to the rights of tenants under Exis5ng Leases.

14. Buyer's Entry.

At any 5me during the Escrow period, Buyer, and its agents and representa5ves, shall have the right at reasonable 5mes and subject to rights of tenants, to enter upon

the Property for the purpose of making inspec5ons and tests specified in this Agreement. No destruc5ve tes5ng shall be conducted, however, without Seller's prior

approval which shall not be unreasonably withheld. Following any such entry or work, unless otherwise directed in wri5ng by Seller, Buyer shall return the Property to

the condi5on it was in prior to such entry or work, including the recompac5on or removal of any disrupted soil or material as Seller may reasonably direct. All such

inspec5ons and tests and any other work conducted or materials furnished with respect to the Property by or for Buyer shall be paid for by Buyer as and when due

and Buyer shall indemnify, defend, protect and hold harmless Seller and the Property of and from any and all claims, liabili5es, losses, expenses (including reasonable

a<orneys' fees), damages, including those for injury to person or property, arising out of or rela5ng to any such work or materials or the acts or omissions of Buyer, its

agents or employees in connec5on therewith.

15. Further Documents and Assurances.

The Par5es shall each, diligently and in good faith, undertake all ac5ons and procedures reasonably required to place the Escrow in condi5on for Closing as and when

required by this Agreement. The Par5es agree to provide all further informa5on, and to execute and deliver all further documents, reasonably required by Escrow

Holder or the Title Company.

16. A�orneys' Fees.

If any Party or Broker brings an ac5on or proceeding (including arbitra5on) involving the Property whether founded in tort, contract or equity, or to declare rights

hereunder, the Prevailing Party (as herea@er defined) in any such proceeding, ac5on, or appeal thereon, shall be en5tled to reasonable a<orneys' fees and costs. Such

feesmay be awarded in the same suit or recovered in a separate suit, whether or not such ac5on or proceeding is pursued to decision or judgment. The term

"Prevailing Party" shall include, without limita5on, a Party or Broker who substan5ally obtains or defeats the relief sought, as the case may be, whether by

compromise, se<lement, judgment, or the abandonment by the other Party or Broker of its claim or defense. The a<orneys' fees award shall not be computed in

accordance with any court fee schedule, but shall be such as to fully reimburse all a<orneys' fees reasonably incurred.

17. Prior Agreements/Amendments.

17.1 This Agreement supersedes any and all prior agreements between Seller and Buyer regarding the Property.

17.2 Amendments to this Agreement are effec5ve only if made in wri5ng and executed by Buyer and Seller.

18. Broker's Rights.

18.1 If this sale is not consummated due to the default of either the Buyer or Seller, the defaul5ng Party shall be liable to and shall pay to Brokers the Brokerage

Fee that Brokers would have received had the sale been consummated. If Buyer is the defaul5ng party, payment of said Brokerage Fee is in addi5on to any obliga5on

with respect to liquidated or other damages.

18.2 Upon the Closing, Brokers are authorized to publicize the facts of this transac5on.

19. No'ces.

19.1 Whenever any Party, Escrow Holder or Brokers herein shall desire to give or serve any no5ce, demand, request, approval, disapproval or other

communica5on, each such communica5on shall be in wri5ng and shall be delivered personally, by messenger, or by mail, postage prepaid, to the address set forth in

this agreement or by facsimile transmission, electronic signature, digital signature, or email.

19.2 Service of any such communica5on shall be deemedmade on the date of actual receipt if personally delivered, or transmi<ed by facsimile transmission,

electronic signature, digital signature, or email. Any such communica5on sent by regular mail shall be deemed given 48 hours a@er the same is mailed.

Communica5ons sent by United States Express Mail or overnight courier that guarantee next day delivery shall be deemed delivered 24 hours a@er delivery of the

same to the Postal Service or courier. If such communica5on is received on a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, it shall be deemed received on the next business day.

19.3 Any Party or Broker hereto may from 5me to 5me, by no5ce inwri5ng, designate a different address to which, or a different person or addi5onal persons

to whom, all communica5ons are therea@er to bemade.

20. Dura'on of Offer.

20.1 If this offer is not accepted by Seller on or before 5:00 P.M. according to the 5me standard applicable to the city of Patterson, CA on the

date of October 30, 2024 , it shall be deemed automa5cally revoked.

20.2 The acceptance of this offer, or of any subsequent counteroffer hereto, that creates an agreement between the Par5es as described in paragraph 1.2, shall

be deemed made upon delivery to the other Party or either Broker herein of a duly executed wri5ng uncondi5onally accep5ng the last outstanding offer or

counteroffer.

21. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. (This Liquidated Damages paragraph is applicable only if ini'aled by both Par'es).

THE PARTIES AGREE THAT ITWOULD BE IMPRACTICABLE OR EXTREMELY DIFFICULT TO FIX, PRIOR TO SIGNING THIS AGREEMENT, THE ACTUAL DAMAGES WHICH

WOULD BE SUFFERED BY SELLER IF BUYER FAILS TO PERFORM ITS OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. THEREFORE, IF, AFTER THE SATISFACTION ORWAIVER

OF ALL CONTINGENCIES PROVIDED FOR THE BUYER'S BENEFIT, BUYER BREACHES THIS AGREEMENT, SELLER SHALL BE ENTITLED TO LIQUIDATED DAMAGES IN THE

AMOUNTOF $100,000 . UPON PAYMENT OF SAID SUM TO SELLER, BUYER SHALL BE RELEASED FROM ANY FURTHER LIABILITY TO SELLER, ANDANY

ESCROWCANCELLATION FEES AND TITLE COMPANY CHARGES SHALL BE PAID BY SELLER.

Buyer's Ini5als Seller's Ini5als

Docusign Envelope ID: A03A1CF2-41E7-4755-BBE6-28BD3068FF84Docusign Envelope ID: C3BB553C-F2A7-41CB-80C7-4DBC05C06A47
29 of 54



________ ________

________ ________

INITIALS INITIALS

© 2019 AIR CRE. All Rights Reserved. Last Edited: 10/28/2024 1:37 PM

OFAL15.30, Revised 10132022 Page 8 of 10

22. ARBITRATION OF DISPUTES. (This Arbitra-on of Disputes paragraph is applicable only if ini-aled by both Par-es.)

22.1 ANY CONTROVERSY AS TO WHETHER SELLER IS ENTITLED TO LIQUIDATED DAMAGES AND/OR BUYER IS ENTITLED TO THE RETURN OF THE DEPOSIT

SHALL BE DETERMINED BY BINDING ARBITRATION ADMINISTERED BY THE JUDICIAL ARBITRATION & MEDIATION SERVICES, INC. ("JAMS") IN ACCORDANCE WITH

ITS COMMERCIAL ARBITRATION RULES ("COMMERCIAL RULES"). ARBITRATION HEARINGS SHALL BE HELD IN THE COUNTY WHERE THE PROPERTY IS LOCATED.

SUCH CONTROVERSY SHALL BE ARBITRATED BY A SINGLE ARBITRATOR, APPOINTED UNDER THE COMMERCIAL RULES WHO HAS HAD AT LEAST 5 YEARS OF

EXPERIENCE IN THE TYPE OF REAL ESTATE THAT IS THE SUBJECT OF THIS AGREEMENT. THE ARBITRATOR SHALL HEAR AND DETERMINE SAID CONTROVERSY IN

ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW OF THE JURISDICTION WHERE THE PROPERTY IS LOCATED, THE INTENTION OF THE PARTIES AS EXPRESSED IN THIS

AGREEMENT AND ANY AMENDMENTS THERETO, AND UPON THE EVIDENCE PRODUCED AT AN ARBITRATION HEARING. PREARBITRATION DISCOVERY SHALL BE

PERMITTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COMMERCIAL RULES OR STATE LAW APPLICABLE TO ARBITRATION PROCEEDINGS. THE ARBITRATOR SHALL RENDER AN

AWARD WITHIN 30 DAYS AFTER THE CONCLUSION OF THE HEARING, WHICH MAY INCLUDE ATTORNEYS' FEES AND COSTS TO THE PREVAILING PARTY PER

PARAGRAPH 16 HEREOF AND SHALL BE ACCOMPANIED BY A REASONED OPINION. THE FAILURE OR REFUSAL OF A PARTY TO PAY SUCH PARTY'S REQUIRED SHARE

OF THE DEPOSITS FOR ARBITRATOR COMPENSATION OR ADMINISTRATIVE CHARGES SHALL CONSTITUTE A WAIVER BY SUCH PARTY TO PRESENT EVIDENCE OR

CROSSEXAMINE WITNESSES, BUT SUCH WAIVER SHALL NOT ALLOW FOR A DEFAULT JUDGMENT AGAINST THE NONPAYING PARTY IN THE ABSENCE OF EVIDENCE

AND LEGAL ARGUMENT AS THE ARBITRATOR MAY REQUIRE FOR MAKING AN AWARD. JUDGMENT MAY BE ENTERED ON THE AWARD IN ANY COURT OF

COMPETENT JURISDICTION NOTWITHSTANDING THE FAILURE OF A PARTY DULY NOTIFIED OF THE ARBITRATION HEARING TO APPEAR THEREAT.

22.2 BUYER'S RESORT TO OR PARTICIPATION IN SUCH ARBITRATION PROCEEDINGS SHALL NOT BAR SUIT IN A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION BY THE

BUYER FOR DAMAGES AND/OR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE UNLESS ANDUNTIL THE ARBITRATION RESULTS IN AN AWARD TO THE SELLER OF LIQUIDATED DAMAGES, IN

WHICH EVENT SUCH AWARD SHALL ACT AS A BAR AGAINST ANY ACTION BY BUYER FOR DAMAGES AND/OR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE.

22.3 NOTICE: BY INITIALING IN THE SPACE BELOW YOU ARE AGREEING TO HAVE ANY DISPUTE ARISING OUT OF THEMATTERS INCLUDED IN THE "ARBITRATION

OF DISPUTES" PROVISION DECIDED BY NEUTRAL ARBITRATION AS PROVIDED BY CALIFORNIA LAWAND YOU ARE GIVING UP ANY RIGHTS YOUMIGHT POSSESS TO

HAVE THE DISPUTE LITIGATED IN A COURT OR JURY TRIAL. BY INITIALING IN THE SPACE BELOW YOUARE GIVING UP YOUR JUDICIAL RIGHTS TODISCOVERY AND

APPEAL, UNLESS SUCH RIGHTS ARE SPECIFICALLY INCLUDED IN THE "ARBITRATIONOF DISPUTES" PROVISION. IF YOU REFUSE TO SUBMIT TO ARBITRATION AFTER

AGREEING TO THIS PROVISION, YOUMAY BE COMPELLED TO ARBITRATE UNDER THE AUTHORITY OF THE CALIFORNIA CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE. YOUR AGREEMENT

TO THIS ARBITRATION PROVISION IS VOLUNTARY.

WE HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND THE FOREGOING ANDAGREE TO SUBMIT DISPUTES ARISINGOUT OF THE MATTERS INCLUDED IN THE "ARBITRATION OF DISPUTES"

PROVISION TO NEUTRAL ARBITRATION.

Buyer's Ini-als Seller's Ini-als

23. Miscellaneous.

23.1 Binding Effect. Buyer and Seller both acknowledge that they have carefully read and reviewed this Agreement and each term and provision contained

herein. In addi-on, this Agreement shall be binding on the Par-es without regard to whether or not paragraphs 21 and 22 are ini-aled by both of the Par-es.

Paragraphs 21 and 22 are each incorporated into this Agreement only if ini-aled by both Par-es at the -me that the Agreement is executed. Signatures to this

Agreement accomplished bymeans of electronic signature or similar technology shall be legal and binding.

23.2 Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, and paragraph 22.3 is amended to refer to, the laws of the state in which the Property is located.

Any li-ga-on or arbitra-on between the Par-es hereto concerning this Agreement shall be ini-ated in the county in which the Property is located.

23.3 Time of Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement.

23.4 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed by Buyer and Seller in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which together

shall cons-tute one and the same instrument. Escrow Holder, aDer verifying that the counterparts are iden-cal except for the signatures, is authorized and instructed

to combine the signed signature pages on one of the counterparts, which shall then cons-tute the Agreement.

23.5 Waiver of Jury Trial. THE PARTIES HEREBY WAIVE THEIR RESPECTIVE RIGHTS TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING INVOLVING THE

PROPERTY OR ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT.

23.6 Conflict. Any conflict between the printed provisions of this Agreement and the typewriHen or handwriHen provisions shall be controlled by the

typewriHen or handwriHen provisions. Seller and Buyer must ini?al any and all handwriAen provisions.

23.7 1031 Exchange. Both Seller and Buyer agree to cooperate with each other in the event that either or both wish to par-cipate in a 1031 exchange. Any

party ini-a-ng an exchange shall bear all costs of such exchange. The coopera-ng Party shall not have any liability (special or otherwise) for damages to the

exchanging Party in the event that the sale is delayed and/or that the sale otherwise fails to qualify as a 1031 exchange.

23.8 Days. Unless otherwise specifically indicated to the contrary, the word "days" as used in this Agreement shall mean and refer to calendar days.

24. Disclosures Regarding the Nature of a Real Estate Agency Rela?onship.

24.1 The Par-es and Brokers agree that their rela-onship(s) shall be governed by the principles set forth in the applicable sec-ons of the California Civil Code, as

summarized in paragraph 24.2.

24.2 When entering into a discussion with a real estate agent regarding a real estate transac-on, a Buyer or Seller should from the outset understand what type

of agency rela-onship or representa-on it has with the agent or agents in the transac-on. Buyer and Seller acknowledge being advised by the Brokers in this

transac-on, as follows:

(a) Seller's Agent. A Seller's agent under a lis-ng agreement with the Seller acts as the agent for the Seller only. A Seller's agent or subagent has the

following affirma-ve obliga-ons: (1) To the Seller: A fiduciary duty of utmost care, integrity, honesty, and loyalty in dealings with the Seller. (2) To the Buyer and the

Seller: a. Diligent exercise of reasonable skills and care in performance of the agent's du-es. b. A duty of honest and fair dealing and good faith. c. A duty to disclose

all facts known to the agent materially affec-ng the value or desirability of the property that are not known to, or within the diligent aHen-on and observa-on of, the

Par-es. An agent is not obligated to reveal to either Party any confiden-al informa-on obtained from the other Party which does not involve the affirma-ve du-es set

forth above.

(b) Buyer's Agent. A selling agent can, with a Buyer's consent, agree to act as agent for the Buyer only. In these situa-ons, the agent is not the Seller's

agent, even if by agreement the agent may receive compensa-on for services rendered, either in full or in part from the Seller. An agent ac-ng only for a Buyer has

the following affirma-ve obliga-ons. (1) To the Buyer: A fiduciary duty of utmost care, integrity, honesty, and loyalty in dealings with the Buyer. (2) To the Buyer and

the Seller: a. Diligent exercise of reasonable skills and care in performance of the agent's du-es. b. A duty of honest and fair dealing and good faith. c. A duty to

Docusign Envelope ID: A03A1CF2-41E7-4755-BBE6-28BD3068FF84Docusign Envelope ID: C3BB553C-F2A7-41CB-80C7-4DBC05C06A47
30 of 54



________ ________

________ ________

INITIALS INITIALS

© 2019 AIR CRE. All Rights Reserved. Last Edited: 10/28/2024 1:37 PM

OFAL15.30, Revised 10132022 Page 9 of 10

disclose all facts known to the agent materially affec2ng the value or desirability of the property that are not known to, or within the diligent a6en2on and

observa2on of, the Par2es. An agent is not obligated to reveal to either Party any confiden2al informa2on obtained from the other Party which does not involve the

affirma2ve du2es set forth above.

(c) Agent Represen
ng Both Seller and Buyer. A real estate agent, either ac2ng directly or through one ormore associate licensees, can legally be the

agent of both the Seller and the Buyer in a transac2on, but only with the knowledge and consent of both the Seller and the Buyer. (1) In a dual agency situa2on, the

agent has the following affirma2ve obliga2ons to both the Seller and the Buyer: a. A fiduciary duty of utmost care, integrity, honesty and loyalty in the dealings with

either Seller or the Buyer. b. Other du2es to the Seller and the Buyer as stated above in their respec2ve sec2ons (a) or (b) of this paragraph 24.2. (2) In represen2ng

both Seller and Buyer, the agentmay not, without the express permission of the respec2ve Party, disclose to the other Party confiden2al informa2on, including, but

not limited to, facts rela2ng to either Buyer's or Seller's financial posi2on, mo2va2ons, bargaining posi2on, or other personal informa2on that may impact price,

including Seller's willingness to accept a price less than the lis2ng price or Buyer's willingness to pay a price greater than the price offered. (3) The above du2es of the

agent in a real estate transac2on do not relieve a Seller or Buyer from the responsibility to protect their own interests. Buyer and Seller should carefully read all

agreements to assure that they adequately express their understanding of the transac2on. A real estate agent is a person qualified to advise about real estate. If legal

or tax advice is desired, consult a competent professional. Buyer has the duty to exercise reasonable care to protect Buyer, including as to those facts about the

Property which are known to Buyer or within Buyer's diligent a6en2on and observa2on. Both Seller and Buyer should strongly consider obtaining tax advice from a

competent professional because the federal and state tax consequences of a transac2on can be complex and subject to change.

(d) Further Disclosures. Throughout this transac2on Buyer and Seller may receive more than one disclosure, depending upon the number of agents

assis2ng in the transac2on. Buyer and Seller should each read its contents each 2me it is presented, considering the rela2onship between them and the real estate

agent in this transac2on and that disclosure. Buyer and Seller each acknowledge receipt of a disclosure of the possibility of mul2ple representa2on by the Broker

represen2ng that principal. This disclosure may be part of a lis2ng agreement, buyer representa2on agreement or separate document. Buyer understands that

Broker represen2ng Buyer may also represent other poten2al buyers, whomay consider, make offers on or ul2mately acquire the Property. Seller understands that

Broker represen2ng Seller may also represent other sellers with compe2ng proper2es that may be of interest to this Buyer. Brokers have no responsibility with

respect to any default or breach hereof by either Party. The Par2es agree that no lawsuit or other legal proceeding involving any breach of duty, error or omission

rela2ng to this transac2on may be brought against Broker more than one year a@er the Date of Agreement and that the liability (including court costs and a6orneys'

fees), of any Broker with respect to any breach of duty, error or omission rela2ng to this Agreement shall not exceed the fee received by such Broker pursuant to this

Agreement; provided, however, that the foregoing limita2on on each Broker's liability shall not be applicable to any gross negligence or willful misconduct of such

Broker.

24.3 Confiden
al Informa
on. Buyer and Seller agree to iden2fy to Brokers as "Confiden2al" any communica2on or informa2on given Brokers that is considered

by such Party to be confiden2al.

25. Construc�on of Agreement. In construing this Agreement, all headings and 2tles are for the convenience of the Par2es only and shall not be considered a part

of this Agreement. Whenever required by the context, the singular shall include the plural and vice versa. This Agreement shall not be construed as if prepared by

one of the Par2es, but rather according to its fair meaning as a whole, as if both Par2es had prepared it.

26. Addi�onal Provisions.

Addi2onal provisions of this offer, if any, are as follows or are a6ached hereto by an addendum or addenda consis2ng of paragraphs 27 through

27 . (If there are no addi2onal provisions write "NONE".)

27. Buyer shall agree to name the future development the "Mahaffey Medical Park".

ATTENTION: NO REPRESENTATION OR RECOMMENDATION ISMADE BY AIR CRE OR BY ANY BROKER AS TO THE LEGAL SUFFICIENCY, LEGAL EFFECT, OR TAX

CONSEQUENCES OF THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTION TOWHICH IT RELATES. THE PARTIES ARE URGED TO:

1. SEEK ADVICE OF COUNSEL AS TO THE LEGAL AND TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THIS AGREEMENT.

2. RETAIN APPROPRIATE CONSULTANTS TO REVIEW AND INVESTIGATE THE CONDITION OF THE PROPERTY. SAID INVESTIGATION SHOULD INCLUDE BUTNOT

BE LIMITED TO: THE POSSIBLE PRESENCE OF HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES, THE ZONING OF THE PROPERTY, THE INTEGRITY AND CONDITIONOF ANY STRUCTURES

ANDOPERATING SYSTEMS, AND THE SUITABILITY OF THE PROPERTY FOR BUYER'S INTENDED USE.

WARNING: IF THE PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN A STATE OTHER THAN CALIFORNIA, CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENTMAY NEED TOBE REVISED TO

COMPLYWITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE INWHICH THE PROPERTY IS LOCATED.

NOTE:

1. THIS FORM IS NOT FOR USE IN CONNECTIONWITH THE SALE OF RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY.

2. IF EITHER PARTY IS A CORPORATION, IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THIS AGREEMENT BE SIGNED BY TWO CORPORATE OFFICERS.

The undersigned Buyer offers and agrees to buy the Property on the terms and condi2ons stated and acknowledges receipt of a copy hereof.

BROKER

A6n:

Title:

Address:

Phone:

Fax:

Date:

BUYER

Del Puerto Health Care District or related

entity

By:

Name Printed: Karin Freese

Title: CEO

Phone:

Fax:

Docusign Envelope ID: A03A1CF2-41E7-4755-BBE6-28BD3068FF84

2024-Oct-28 | 15:09 PDT

Docusign Envelope ID: C3BB553C-F2A7-41CB-80C7-4DBC05C06A47
31 of 54



________ ________

________ ________

INITIALS INITIALS

© 2019 AIR CRE. All Rights Reserved. Last Edited: 10/28/2024 1:37 PM

OFAL15.30, Revised 10132022 Page 10 of 10

Email:

Federal ID No.:

Broker DRE License #:

Agent DRE License #:

Email:

By:

Name Printed:

Title:

Phone:

Fax:

Email:

Address: PO Box 187, Patterson, CA 95363

Federal ID No.:

27. Acceptance.

27.1 Seller accepts the foregoing offer to purchase the Property and hereby agrees to sell the Property to Buyer on the terms and condi8ons therein specified.

27.2 In considera8on of real estate brokerage service rendered by Brokers, Seller agrees to pay Brokers a real estate Brokerage Fee in a sum equal to

4 %of the Purchase Price to be divided between the Brokers as follows: Seller's Broker % and Buyer's Broker %. This

Agreement shall serve as an irrevocable instruc8on to Escrow Holder to pay such Brokerage Fee to Brokers out of the proceeds accruing to the account of Seller at the

Closing.

27.3 Seller acknowledges receipt of a copy hereof and authorizes Brokers to deliver a signed copy to Buyer.

NOTE: A PROPERTY INFORMATION SHEET IS REQUIRED TO BE DELIVERED TO BUYER BY SELLER UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.

BROKER

Lee & Associates - Central Valley, Inc.

A@n: Christopher Sill

Title:

Address: 241 Frank West Circle, #300,

Stockton, CA 95206

Phone: 209-983-1111

Fax:

Email: csill@lee-associates.com

Federal ID No.:

Broker DRE License #: 01166901

Agent's DRE License #: 01188616

Date:

SELLER

Mahaffey Family Limited Partnership &

Mahaffey Michael J & Catherine A Trs

Mahaffey Trust 2008

By:

Name Printed: Michael Mahaffey

Title:

Phone:

Fax:

Email: mahaffey469@gmail.com

By:

Name Printed:

Title:

Phone:

Fax:

Email:

Address: PO Box 307, Patterson, CA 95363

Federal ID No.:

AIR CRE * h#ps://www.aircre.com * 2136878777 * contracts@aircre.com

NOTICE: No part of these works may be reproduced in any formwithout permission in wri7ng.

Docusign Envelope ID: A03A1CF2-41E7-4755-BBE6-28BD3068FF84Docusign Envelope ID: C3BB553C-F2A7-41CB-80C7-4DBC05C06A47

2024-Oct-30 | 11:25 PDT

32 of 54



BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

Board Meeting – January 13, 2025 

9E. Resolution 2025-04: Purchase of Mahaffey North PropertyItem # Title Page 1 of 2 

 

z:\sharedcloud\hydra\data\tmp\pool-6-thread-1-15841295206613488053.octo\12158900-a2a9-4056-ab9b-
49a11dd913be.docx 1/10/2025 

Department:  Chief Executive Office CEO Concurrence:   Yes  

Consent Calendar: No 4/5 Vote Required: No 

 

 

SUBJECT:  Resolution 2025-04: Purchase of Mahaffey North Property 

STAFF REPORT:  The resolution authorizes the execution of the Purchase and Sale 

Agreement for the Mahaffey South property to expand healthcare 

facilities. The Chief Executive Officer is designated as the authorized 

signer and is authorized to perform all related actions to complete the 

acquisition, and prior actions are ratified to comply with the necessary 

regulations. 

DISTRICT PRIORITY:  This acquisition aligns with the District's mission to enhance healthcare 

services, supporting California Health & Safety Code Section 32121. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The purchase cost of $3,113,233 will be funded through revenue from 

the sale of district property and district reserves. 

STAFFING IMPACT:  No additional staffing requirements are anticipated. 

CONTACT PERSON:  Karin Freese 

ATTACHMENT(S): Resolution No. 2025-04 

 Purchase and Sale Agreement for APN 048-048-007-000 

 

RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION: 

 

ROLL CALL REQUIRED:  YES 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  I move that the Board of Directors approve Resolution No. 2025-04, 

authorizing the Chief Executive Officer to execute the Purchase 

Agreement for the Mahaffey South property and perform all related 

actions to complete the acquisition. 

 

Motion Made By Motion Second 

Director Avila   

Director Campo   

Director Ramirez   

Director Stokman   

Director Traore   

33 of 54



BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

Board Meeting – January 13, 2025 

9E. Resolution 2025-04: Purchase of Mahaffey North PropertyItem # Title Page 2 of 2 

 

z:\sharedcloud\hydra\data\tmp\pool-6-thread-1-15841295206613488053.octo\12158900-a2a9-4056-ab9b-
49a11dd913be.docx 1/10/2025 

 

Roll Call Vote Aye No Abstain Absent 

Director Avila     

Director Campo     

Director Ramirez     

Director Stokman     

Director Traore     

 

 

34 of 54



Del Puerto Health Care District 

4925-6758-6061.1    

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-04 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DEL PUERTO HEALTH 
CARE DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION AND APPROVING THE 

EXECUTION OF A PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT FOR APN #048-048-
007-000 WITH THE MAHAFFEY FAMILY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 

 
WHEREAS, the Del Puerto Health Care District (“Buyer”) desires to purchase the 10.21 
AC commercially zoned vacant land property more particularly described as Stanislaus 
County Assessor Parcel No. 048-048-007-000 (the “property”); and 
 
WHEREAS, The acquisition of the property is necessary and directly furthers the express 
purpose of District work or operations. Specifically, to establish, maintain or provide 
assistance in the operation of, one or more health facilities or health services pursuant to 
California Health & Safety Code Section 32121; and 
 
WHEREAS, the current owners of the property, The Mahaffey Family Limited Partnership, 
(a California Limited Partnership) (“Seller”) desire to sell the Property to the District; and 
for a mutually agreed purchase price of $3,113,233.00 along with other terms and 
conditions set forth in that certain Purchase and Sale Agreement for the transfer of fee 
title of the Property from the Seller to the Buyer as shown in Exhibit “A” attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by this reference 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. That the Board of Directors of the Del Puerto Health Care District finds and 

determines that the foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated 
herein as if set forth in full.  

 
2. That the Board of Directors of the Del Puerto Health Care District approves the 

Acquisition and the Purchase and Sale Agreement and authorizes the Chief 
Executive Officer to execute the Purchase and Sale Agreement for 10.21 AC 
commercially zoned vacant land property more particularly described as 
Stanislaus County Assessor Parcel No. 048-048-007-000 in the City of Patterson, 
CA, attached as Exhibit A. 

 
3.  That the Board of Directors of the Del Puerto Health Care District authorizes the 

Chief Executive Officer and designees to take such action(s) (including but not 
limited to the execution of any certificates or other instruments) which the Chief 
Executive Officer may deem necessary or proper to effectuate the purposes of this 
Resolution, and any such actions previously taken are hereby ratified and 
confirmed.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

35 of 54



Del Puerto Health Care District 

4925-6758-6061.1    

4. That the Board of Directors of the Del Puerto Health Care District finds that The 
act of authorizing the execution of the Purchase and Sale Agreement does not 
approve any new development or construction of any new buildings, nor does it 
authorize any new land uses. For this reason, it can be seen with certainty that 
authorizing the execution of the Purchase and Sale Agreement will not result in 
any significant adverse impact on the environment. Accordingly, this authorization 
is exempt from the CEQA environmental review requirements pursuant to Section 
15061(b)(3) of Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations. 

 
The foregoing resolution was adopted at a special meeting of the Board of Directors of 
the Del Puerto Health Care District held on the 13th day of January 2025, by the following 
vote: 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES:   
 
ABSTENTION:  
 
ABSENT:   
 

APPROVED:  
 
 
__________________________ 

     ANNE STOKMAN, President 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Jasmine Sanchez, Board Clerk   

36 of 54



________ ________
________ ________
INITIALS INITIALS
© 2019 AIR CRE. All Rights Reserved. Last Edited: 12/20/2024 1:27 PM
OFAL15.30, Revised 10132022 Page 1 of 8

STANDARD OFFER, AGREEMENT AND ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS
FOR PURCHASE OF REAL ESTATE

(Vacant Land)

Dated: December 18, 2024
1. Buyer.

1.1 Del Puerto Health Care District or related entity , ("Buyer") hereby offers to purchase the real property,
hereinaŌer described, from the owner thereof ("Seller") (collecƟvely, the "Par es" or individually, a "Party"), through an escrow ("Escrow") to close 30 or
fifteen (15) days of expiration of Buyer's Due Diligence/Contingency Period, but no
later than May 13, 2025 days aŌer the waiver or saƟsfacƟon of the Buyer's ConƟngencies, ("Expected Closing Date") to be held by
Chicago Title Company/Melissa Corbin ("Escrow Holder") whose address is 3203 W March Ln STE 110,
Stockton, CA 95219 , Phone No. 209-952-5500 , Facsimile No. upon the terms and condiƟons set forth in this agreement
("Agreement"). Buyer shall have the right to assign Buyer's rights hereunder, but any such assignment shall not relieve Buyer of Buyer's obligaƟons herein unless
Seller expressly releases Buyer.

1.2 The term "Date of Agreement" as used herein shall be the date when by execuƟon and delivery (as defined in paragraph 20.2) of this document or a
subsequent counteroffer thereto, Buyer and Seller have reached agreement in wriƟng whereby Seller agrees to sell, and Buyer agrees to purchase, the Property upon
terms accepted by both ParƟes.

2. Property.
2.1 The real property ("Property") that is the subject of this offer consists of (insert a brief physical descripƟon) Approximately 10.21

acres of commercial land is located in the County of Stanislaus , is commonly known as (street address, city, state, zip) 801
West Las Palmas, Patterson, CA 95363 and is legally described as: To be provided by title company (APN:
048-048-007-000 .)

2.2 If the legal descripƟon of the Property is not complete or is inaccurate, this Agreement shall not be invalid and the legal descripƟon shall be completed or
corrected to meet the requirements of Chicago Title Company ("Title Company"), which shall issue the Ɵtle policy hereinaŌer described.

2.3 The Property includes, at no addiƟonal cost to Buyer, the permanent improvements thereon, including those items which pursuant to applicable law are a
part of the property, as well as the following items, if any, owned by Seller and at present located on the Property: N/A (collecƟvely, the "Improvements").

2.4 Except as provided in Paragraph 2.3, the Purchase Price does not include Seller's personal property, furniture and furnishings, and N/A all of which
shall be removed by Seller prior to Closing.

3. Purchase Price.

3.1 The purchase price ("Purchase Price") to be paid by Buyer to Seller for the Property shall be $3,113,233 , or (complete only if
purchase price will be determined based on a per unit cost instead of a fixed price) per unit. The unit used to determine the Purchase Price shall be:

lot acre square foot other proraƟng areas of less than a full unit. The number of units shall be based on a calculaƟon of total area of
the Property as cerƟfied to the ParƟes by a licensed surveyor in accordance with paragraph 9.1(g). However, the following rights of way and other areas will be
excluded from such calculaƟon: . The Purchase Price shall be payable as follows:

(Strike any not applicable)

(a) Cash down payment, including the Deposit as defined in paragraph 4.3 (or if an all cash transacƟon, the Purchase Price):
$3,113,233

(b) Amount of "New Loan" as defined in paragraph 5.1, if any:

(c) Buyer shall take Ɵtle to the Property subject to and/or assume the following exisƟng deed(s) of trust ("Exis ng Deed(s) of
Trust") securing the exisƟng promissory note(s) ("Exis ng Note(s)"):
(i) An ExisƟng Note ("First Note") with an unpaid principal balance as of the Closing of approximately:

Said First Note is payable at per month, including interest at the rate of % per annum
unƟl paid (and/or the enƟre unpaid balance is due on ).

(ii) An ExisƟng Note ("Second Note") with an unpaid principal balance as of the Closing of approximately:

Said Second Note is payable at per month, including interest at the rate of % per
annum unƟl paid (and/or the enƟre unpaid balance is due on ).

(d) Buyer shall give Seller a deed of trust ("Purchase Money Deed of Trust") on the property, to secure the promissory note
of Buyer to Seller described in paragraph 6 ("Purchase Money Note") in the amount of:

3.2 If Buyer is taking Ɵtle to the Property subject to, or assuming, an ExisƟng Deed of Trust and such deed of trust permits the beneficiary to demand payment
of fees including, but not limited to, points, processing fees, and appraisal fees as a condiƟon to the transfer of the Property, Buyer agrees to pay such fees up to a
maximum of 1.5% of the unpaid principal balance of the applicable ExisƟng Note.

4. Deposits.

4.1 Buyer has delivered to Broker a check in the sum of , payable to Escrow Holder, to be delivered by Broker to Escrow Holder within 2 or

business days aŌer both ParƟes have executed this Agreement and the executed Agreement has been delivered to Escrow Holder, or within 2 or
five business days aŌer both ParƟes have executed this Agreement and the executed Agreement has been delivered to Escrow Holder Buyer shall deliver to

Escrow Holder a check in the sum of $100,000 . If said check is not received by Escrow Holder within said Ɵme period then Seller may elect to unilaterally
terminate this transacƟon by giving wriƩen noƟce of such elecƟon to Escrow Holder whereupon neither Party shall have any further liability to the other under this
Agreement. Should Buyer and Seller not enter into an agreement for purchase and sale, Buyer's check or funds shall, upon request by Buyer, be promptly returned to
Buyer.

4.2 AddiƟonal deposits:
(a) Within 5 business days aŌer the Date of Agreement, Buyer shall deposit with Escrow Holder the addiƟonal sum of to be applied to the

Purchase Price at the Closing.
(b) Within 5 business days aŌer the conƟngencies discussed in paragraph 9.1 (a) through (m) are approved or waived, Buyer shall deposit with Escrow

Holder the addiƟonal sum of to be applied to the Purchase Price at the Closing.
(c) If an AddiƟonal Deposit is not received by Escrow Holder within the Ɵme period provided then Seller may noƟfy Buyer, Escrow Holder, and Brokers, in

wriƟng that, unless the AddiƟonal Deposit is received by Escrow Holder within 2 business days following said noƟce, the Escrow shall be deemed terminated without
further noƟce or instrucƟons.

4.3 Escrow Holder shall deposit the funds deposited with it by Buyer pursuant to paragraphs 4.1 and 4.2 (collecƟvely the "Deposit"), in a State or Federally

Docusign Envelope ID: 4FCFDEE1-B4E6-4406-A0E1-556105198B29Docusign Envelope ID: D072589B-EC3D-4E9D-9E71-DC16C56DB5AB
37 of 54



________ ________
________ ________
INITIALS INITIALS
© 2019 AIR CRE. All Rights Reserved. Last Edited: 12/20/2024 1:27 PM
OFAL15.30, Revised 10132022 Page 2 of 8

chartered bank in an interest bearing account whose term is appropriate and consistent with the Ɵming requirements of this transacƟon. The interest therefrom shall
accrue to the benefit of Buyer, who hereby acknowledges that there may be penalƟes or interest forfeitures if the applicable instrument is redeemed prior to its
specifiedmaturity. Buyer's Federal Tax IdenƟficaƟon Number is . NOTE: Such interest bearing account cannot be opened unƟl Buyer's Federal Tax
IdenƟficaƟon Number is provided.

4.4 Notwithstanding the foregoing, within 5 days aŌer Escrow Holder receives the monies described in paragraph 4.1 above, Escrow Holder shall release $100
of said monies to Seller as and for independent consideraƟon for Seller's' execuƟon of this Agreement and the granƟng of the conƟngency period to Buyer as herein
provided. Such independent consideraƟon is nonrefundable to Buyer but shall be credited to the Purchase Price in the event that the purchase of the Property is
completed.

4.5 Upon waiver of all of Buyer's conƟngencies the Deposit shall become nonrefundable but applicable to the Purchase Price except in the event of a Seller
breach, or in the event that the Escrow is terminated pursuant to the provisions of Paragraph 9.1(n) (DestrucƟon, Damage or Loss) or 9.1(o) (Material Change).

5. Financing Con ngency. (Strike if not applicable)
5.1 This offer is conƟngent upon Buyer obtaining from an insurance company, financial insƟtuƟon or other lender, a commitment to lend to Buyer a sum equal

to at least 50 % of the Purchase Price, on terms acceptable to Buyer. Such loan ("New Loan") shall be secured by a first deed of trust or mortgage on the
Property. If this Agreement provides for Seller to carry back junior financing, then Seller shall have the right to approve the terms of the New Loan. Seller shall have 7
days from receipt of the commitment seƫng forth the proposed terms of the New Loan to approve or disapprove of such proposed terms. If Seller fails to noƟfy
Escrow Holder, in wriƟng, of the disapproval within said 7 days it shall be conclusively presumed that Seller has approved the terms of the New Loan.

5.2 If Buyer shall fail to no fy its Broker, Escrow Holder and Seller, in wri ng within on or before April 28, 2025 days following
the Date of Agreement, that the New Loan has not been obtained, it shall be conclusively presumed that Buyer has either obtained said New Loan or has waived
this New Loan con ngency.

5.3 If Buyer shall noƟfy its Broker, Escrow Holder and Seller, in wriƟng, within the Ɵme specified in paragraph 5.2 hereof, that Buyer has not obtained said New
Loan, this Agreement shall be terminated, and Buyer shall be enƟtled to the prompt return of the Deposit, plus any interest earned thereon, less only Escrow Holder
and Title Company cancellaƟon fees and costs, which Buyer shall pay.

6. Seller Financing. (Purchase Money Note). (Strike if not applicable)
6.1 If Seller approves Buyer's financials (see paragraph 6.5) the Purchase Money Note shall provide for interest on unpaid principal at the rate of

% per annum, with principal and interest paid as follows: . The Purchase Money Note and Purchase Money Deed of Trust shall be on the current forms
commonly used by Escrow Holder, and be junior and subordinate only to the ExisƟng Note(s) and/or the New Loan expressly called for by this Agreement.

6.2 The Purchase Money Note and/or the Purchase Money Deed of Trust shall contain provisions regarding the following (see also paragraph 10.3 (b)):
(a) Prepayment. Principal may be prepaid in whole or in part at any Ɵmewithout penalty, at the opƟon of the Buyer.
(b) Late Charge. A late charge of 6% shall be payable with respect to any payment of principal, interest, or other charges, not made within 10 days aŌer

it is due.
(c) Due On Sale. In the event the Buyer sells or transfers Ɵtle to the Property or any porƟon thereof, then the Seller may, at Seller's opƟon, require the

enƟre unpaid balance of said Note to be paid in full.
6.3 If the Purchase Money Deed of Trust is to be subordinate to other financing, Escrow Holder shall, at Buyer's expense prepare and record on Seller's behalf a

request for noƟce of default and/or sale with regard to each mortgage or deed of trust to which it will be subordinate.
6.4 WARNING: CALIFORNIA LAW DOES NOT ALLOW DEFICIENCY JUDGEMENTS ON SELLER FINANCING. IF BUYER ULTIMATELY DEFAULTS ON THE LOAN,

SELLER'S SOLE REMEDY IS TO FORECLOSE ON THE PROPERTY.
6.5 Seller's obligaƟon to provide financing is conƟngent upon Seller's reasonable approval of Buyer's financial condiƟon. Buyer to provide a current financial

statement and copies of its Federal tax returns for the last 3 years to Seller within 10 days following the Date of Agreement. Seller has 10 days following receipt of
such documentaƟon to saƟsfy itself with regard to Buyer's financial condiƟon and to noƟfy Escrow Holder as to whether or not Buyer's financial condiƟon is
acceptable. If Seller fails to noƟfy Escrow Holder, in wriƟng, of the disapproval of this conƟngency within said Ɵme period, it shall be conclusively presumed that Seller
has approved Buyer's financial condiƟon. If Seller is not saƟsfied with Buyer's financial condiƟon or if Buyer fails to deliver the required documentaƟon then Seller
may noƟfy Escrow Holder in wriƟng that Seller Financing will not be available, and Buyer shall have the opƟon, within 10 days of the receipt of such noƟce, to either
terminate this transacƟon or to purchase the Property without Seller financing. If Buyer fails to noƟfy Escrow Holder within said Ɵme period of its elecƟon to
terminate this transacƟon then Buyer shall be conclusively presumed to have elected to purchase the Property without Seller financing. If Buyer elects to terminate,
Buyer's Deposit shall be refunded less Title Company and Escrow Holder cancellaƟon fees and costs, all of which shall be Buyer's obligaƟon.

7. Real Estate Brokers.
7.1 Each Party acknowledges receiving a Disclosure Regarding Real Estate Agency RelaƟonship, confirms and consents to the following agency relaƟonships in

this transacƟon with the following real estate broker(s) ("Brokers") and/or their agents (“Agent(s)”):
Seller's Brokerage Firm Lee & Associates - Central Valley, Inc. License No. 01166901 is the broker of (check

one): the Seller; or both the Buyer and Seller (dual agent).

Seller's Agent Christopher Sill License No. 01188616 is (check one): the Seller's Agent (salesperson or broker associate); or
both the Seller's Agent and the Buyer's Agent (dual agent).

Buyer's Brokerage Firm License No. is the broker of (check one): the Buyer; or both the Buyer and Seller (dual agent).

Buyer's Agent License No. is (check one): the Buyer's Agent (salesperson or broker associate); or both the Buyer's Agent
and the Seller's Agent (dual agent).
The ParƟes acknowledge that other than the Brokers and Agents listed above, there are no other brokers or agents represenƟng the ParƟes or due any fees and/or
commissions under this Agreement. Buyer shall use the services of Buyer's Broker exclusively in connecƟon with any and all negoƟaƟons and offers with respect to
the Property for a period of 1 year from the date inserted for reference purposes at the top of page 1.

7.2 Buyer and Seller each represent and warrant to the other that he/she/it has had no dealings with any person, firm, broker, agent or finder in connecƟon
with the negoƟaƟon of this Agreement and/or the consummaƟon of the purchase and sale contemplated herein, other than the Brokers and Agents named in
paragraph 7.1, and no broker, agent or other person, firm or enƟty, other than said Brokers and Agents is/are enƟtled to any commission or finder's fee in connecƟon
with this transacƟon as the result of any dealings or acts of such Party. Buyer and Seller do each hereby agree to indemnify, defend, protect and hold the other
harmless from and against any costs, expenses or liability for compensaƟon, commission or charges whichmay be claimed by any broker, agent, finder or other similar
party, other than said named Brokers and Agents by reason of any dealings or act of the indemnifying Party.

8. Escrow and Closing.
8.1 Upon acceptance hereof by Seller, this Agreement, including any counteroffers incorporated herein by the ParƟes, shall consƟtute not only the agreement

of purchase and sale between Buyer and Seller, but also instrucƟons to Escrow Holder for the consummaƟon of the Agreement through the Escrow. Escrow Holder
shall not prepare any further escrow instrucƟons restaƟng or amending the Agreement unless specifically so instructed by the ParƟes or a Broker herein. Subject to
the reasonable approval of the ParƟes, Escrow Holder may, however, include its standard general escrow provisions. In the event that there is any conflict between
the provisions of the Agreement and the provisions of any addiƟonal escrow instrucƟons the provisions of the Agreement shall prevail as to the ParƟes and the Escrow
Holder.

8.2 As soon as pracƟcal aŌer the receipt of this Agreement and any relevant counteroffers, Escrow Holder shall ascertain the Date of Agreement as defined in
paragraphs 1.2 and 20.2 and advise the ParƟes and Brokers, in wriƟng, of the date ascertained.

8.3 Escrow Holder is hereby authorized and instructed to conduct the Escrow in accordance with this Agreement, applicable law and custom and pracƟce of
the community in which Escrow Holder is located, including any reporƟng requirements of the Internal Revenue Code. In the event of a conflict between the law of
the state where the Property is located and the law of the state where the Escrow Holder is located, the law of the state where the Property is located shall prevail.

8.4 Subject to saƟsfacƟon of the conƟngencies herein described, Escrow Holder shall close this escrow (the "Closing") by recording a general warranty deed (a
grant deed in California) and the other documents required to be recorded, and by disbursing the funds and documents in accordance with this Agreement.

8.5 Buyer and Seller shall each pay onehalf of the Escrow Holder's charges and Seller shall pay the usual recording fees and any required documentary transfer
taxes. Seller shall pay one half of the premium for a standard coverage owner's or joint protecƟon policy of Ɵtle insurance. (See also paragraph 11.)

8.6 Escrow Holder shall verify that all of Buyer's conƟngencies have been saƟsfied or waived prior to Closing. The maƩers contained in paragraphs 9.1
subparagraphs (b), (c), (d), (e), (g), (i), (n), and (o), 9.4, 12, 13, 14, 16, 18, 20, 21, 22, and 24 are, however, maƩers of agreement between the ParƟes only and are not
instrucƟons to Escrow Holder.

8.7 If this transacƟon is terminated for nonsaƟsfacƟon and nonwaiver of a Buyer's ConƟngency, as defined in Paragraph 9.2 or disapproval of any other

Docusign Envelope ID: 4FCFDEE1-B4E6-4406-A0E1-556105198B29Docusign Envelope ID: D072589B-EC3D-4E9D-9E71-DC16C56DB5AB
38 of 54



________ ________
________ ________
INITIALS INITIALS
© 2019 AIR CRE. All Rights Reserved. Last Edited: 12/20/2024 1:27 PM
OFAL15.30, Revised 10132022 Page 3 of 8

maƩer subject to Buyer's approval, then neither of the ParƟes shall thereaŌer have any liability to the other under this Agreement, except to the extent of a breach of
any affirmaƟve covenant or warranty in this Agreement. In the event of such terminaƟon, Buyer shall, subject to the provisions of paragraph 8.10, be promptly
refunded all funds deposited by Buyer with Escrow Holder, less only the $100 provided for in paragraph 4.4 and the Title Company and Escrow Holder cancellaƟon
fees and costs, all of which shall be Buyer's obligaƟon. If this transacƟon is terminated as a result of Seller's breach of this Agreement then Seller shall pay the Title
Company and Escrow Holder cancellaƟon fees and costs.

8.8 The Closing shall occur on the Expected Closing Date, or as soon thereaŌer as the Escrow is in condiƟon for Closing; provided, however, that if the Closing
does not occur by the Expected Closing Date and said Date is not extended by mutual instrucƟons of the ParƟes, a Party not then in default under this Agreement may
noƟfy the other Party, Escrow Holder, and Brokers, in wriƟng that, unless the Closing occurs within 5 business days following said noƟce, the Escrow shall be deemed
terminated without further noƟce or instrucƟons.

8.9 Except as otherwise provided herein, the terminaƟon of Escrow shall not relieve or release either Party from any obligaƟon to pay Escrow Holder's fees and
costs or consƟtute a waiver, release or discharge of any breach or default that has occurred in the performance of the obligaƟons, agreements, covenants or
warranƟes contained therein.

8.10 If this Escrow is terminated for any reason other than Seller's breach or default, then as a condiƟon to the return of Buyer's deposit, Buyer shall within 5
days aŌer wriƩen request deliver to Seller, at no charge, copies of all surveys, engineering studies, soil reports, maps, master plans, feasibility studies and other similar
items prepared by or for Buyer that pertain to the Property.

9. Con ngencies to Closing.
9.1 IF, BEFORE EXPIRATION OF THE APPLICABLE TIME, BUYER FAILS TO PROVIDE ESCROWHOLDER WRITTEN NOTICE OF BUYER'S DISAPPROVAL OF ANY OF

BUYER'S CONTINGENCIES OR ANY OTHERMATTER THAT IS SUBJECT TO BUYER'S APPROVAL IN THIS AGREEMENT, THEN BUYER SHALL BE CONCLUSIVELY DEEMED
TO HAVE SATISFIED SUCH BUYER'S CONTINGENCIES AND/OR APPROVEDOF SUCHOTHER MATTERS. If a number of days is completed in any of the opƟonal spaces
in subparagraphs 9.1 (a) through (m), then such number shall apply and override the preprinted number, even if the preprinted number is not stricken. The Closing
of this transacƟon is conƟngent upon the saƟsfacƟon or waiver of the following conƟngencies:

(a) Disclosure. Seller shall make to Buyer, through Escrow, all of the applicable disclosures required by law (See AIR CRE ("AIR") standard form enƟtled
"Seller's Mandatory Disclosure Statement") and provide Buyer with a completed Property InformaƟon Sheet ("Property Informa on Sheet") concerning the Property,
duly executed by or on behalf of Seller in the current form or equivalent to that published by the AIR within 10 or days following the Date of
Agreement. Buyer has 10 days from the receipt of said disclosures to approve or disapprove the maƩers disclosed.

(b) Physical Inspec on. Buyer has 10 or until April 28, 2025 days following the receipt of the Property InformaƟon Sheet or the
Date of Agreement, whichever is later, to saƟsfy itself with regard to the physical aspects and size of the Property.

(c) Hazardous Substance Condi ons Report/Environmental Contamination Assessment Report. Buyer has 30 or
until April 28, 2025 days following the receipt of the Property InformaƟon Sheet or the Date of Agreement, whichever is later, to saƟsfy itself

with regard to the environmental aspects of the Property. Seller recommends that Buyer obtain a Hazardous Substance CondiƟons Report concerning the Property
and relevant adjoining properƟes. Any such report shall be paid for by Buyer. A "Hazardous Substance" for purposes of this Agreement is defined as any substance
whose nature and/or quanƟty of existence, use, manufacture, disposal or effect, render it subject to Federal, state or local regulaƟon, invesƟgaƟon, remediaƟon or
removal as potenƟally injurious to public health or welfare. A "Hazardous Substance Condi on" for purposes of this Agreement is defined as the existence on, under
or relevantly adjacent to the Property of a Hazardous Substance that would require remediaƟon and/or removal under applicable Federal, state or local law.

(d) Soil Inspec on. Buyer has 30 or until April 28, 2025 days following the receipt of the Property InformaƟon Sheet or the Date of
Agreement, whichever is later, to saƟsfy itself with regard to the condiƟon of the soils on the Property. Seller recommends that Buyer obtain a soil test report
and/or Environmental Contamination Assessment . Any such report shall be paid for by Buyer. Seller shall provide Buyer copies of
any soils report that Seller may have within 10 days following the Date of Agreement.

(e) Governmental Approvals. Buyer has 30 or until April 28, 2025 days following the Date of Agreement to saƟsfy itself with
regard to approvals and permits from governmental agencies or departments which have or may have jurisdicƟon over the Property and which Buyer deems
necessary or desirable in connecƟon with its intended use of the Property, including, but not limited to, permits and approvals required with respect to zoning,
planning, building and safety, fire, police, handicapped and Americans with DisabiliƟes Act requirements, transportaƟon and environmental maƩers.
NOTE: Past uses of the Property may no longer be allowed. In the event that the Property must be rezoned, it is Buyer's responsibility to obtain the rezoning from the
appropriate government agencies. Seller shall sign all documents Buyer is required to file in connecƟon with rezoning, condiƟonal use permits and/or other
development approvals.

(f) Condi ons of Title. Escrow Holder shall cause a current commitment for Ɵtle insurance ("Title Commitment") concerning the Property issued by the
Title Company, as well as legible copies of all documents referred to in the Title Commitment ("Underlying Documents"), and a scaled and dimensioned plot showing
the locaƟon of any easements to be delivered to Buyer within 10 or - days following the Date of Agreement. Buyer has 10 days from the receipt of the
Title Commitment, the Underlying Documents and the plot plan to saƟsfy itself with regard to the condiƟon of Ɵtle. The disapproval by Buyer of any monetary
encumbrance, which by the terms of this Agreement is not to remain against the Property aŌer the Closing, shall not be considered a failure of this conƟngency, as
Seller shall have the obligaƟon, at Seller's expense, to saƟsfy and remove such disapproved monetary encumbrance at or before the Closing.

(g) Survey. Buyer has 30 or - days following the receipt of the Title Commitment and Underlying Documents to saƟsfy itself with regard to
any ALTA Ɵtle supplement based upon a survey prepared to American Land Title AssociaƟon ("ALTA") standards for an owner's policy by a licensed surveyor, showing
the legal descripƟon and boundary lines of the Property, any easements of record, and any improvements, poles, structures and things located within 10 feet of either
side of the Property boundary lines. Any such survey shall be prepared at Buyer's direcƟon and expense. If Buyer has obtained a survey and approved the ALTA Ɵtle
supplement, Buyer may elect within the period allowed for Buyer's approval of a survey to have an ALTA extended coverage owner's form of Ɵtle policy, in which event
Buyer shall pay any addiƟonal premium aƩributable thereto.

(h) Exis ng Leases and Tenancy Statements. Seller shall within 10 or - days following the Date of Agreement provide both Buyer and Escrow
Holder with legible copies of all leases, subleases or rental arrangements (collecƟvely, "Exis ng Leases") affecƟng the Property, and with a tenancy statement
("Estoppel Cer ficate") in the latest form or equivalent to that published by the AIR, executed by Seller and/or each tenant and subtenant of the Property. Seller shall
use its best efforts to have each tenant complete and execute an Estoppel CerƟficate. If any tenant fails or refuses to provide an Estoppel CerƟficate then Seller shall
complete and execute an Estoppel CerƟficate for that tenancy. Buyer has 10 days from the receipt of said ExisƟng Leases and Estoppel CerƟficates to saƟsfy itself with
regard to the ExisƟng Leases and any other tenancy issues.

(i) Owner's Associa on. Seller shall within 10 or - days following the Date of Agreement provide Buyer with a statement and transfer
package from any owner's associaƟon servicing the Property. Such transfer package shall at a minimum include: copies of the associaƟon's bylaws, arƟcles of
incorporaƟon, current budget and financial statement. Buyer has 10 days from the receipt of such documents to saƟsfy itself with regard to the associaƟon.

(j) Other Agreements. Seller shall within 10 or - days following the Date of Agreement provide Buyer with legible copies of all other
agreements ("Other Agreements") known to Seller that will affect the Property aŌer Closing. Buyer has 10 days from the receipt of said Other Agreements to saƟsfy
itself with regard to such Agreements.

(k) Financing. If paragraph 5 hereof dealing with a financing conƟngency has not been stricken, the saƟsfacƟon or waiver of such New Loan conƟngency.
(l) Exis ng Notes. If paragraph 3.1(c) has not been stricken, Seller shall within 10 or days following the Date of Agreement provide Buyer

with legible copies of the ExisƟng Notes, ExisƟng Deeds of Trust and related agreements (collecƟvely, "Loan Documents") to which the Property will remain subject
aŌer the Closing. Escrow Holder shall promptly request from the holders of the ExisƟng Notes a beneficiary statement ("Beneficiary Statement") confirming: (1) the
amount of the unpaid principal balance, the current interest rate, and the date to which interest is paid, and (2) the nature and amount of any impounds held by the
beneficiary in connecƟon with such loan. Buyer has 10 or days following the receipt of the Loan Documents and Beneficiary Statements to saƟsfy itself
with regard to such financing. Buyer's obligaƟon to close is condiƟoned upon Buyer being able to purchase the Property without acceleraƟon or change in the terms
of any ExisƟng Notes or charges to Buyer except as otherwise provided in this Agreement or approved by Buyer, provided, however, Buyer shall pay the transfer fee
referred to in paragraph 3.2 hereof. Likewise if Seller is to carry back a Purchase Money Note then Seller shall within 10 or days following the Date of
Agreement provide Buyer with a copy of the proposed Purchase Money Note and Purchase Money Deed of Trust. Buyer has 10 or days from the
receipt of such documents to saƟsfy itself with regard to the form and content thereof.

(m) Personal Property. In the event that any personal property is included in the Purchase Price, Buyer has 10 or 30 days following the Date of
Agreement to saƟsfy itself with regard to the Ɵtle condiƟon of such personal property. Seller recommends that Buyer obtain a UCC1 report. Any such report shall be
paid for by Buyer. Seller shall provide Buyer copies of any liens or encumbrances affecƟng such personal property that it is aware of within 10 or - days
following the Date of Agreement.

(n) Destruc on, Damage or Loss. Subsequent to the Date of Agreement and prior to Closing there shall not have occurred a destrucƟon of, or damage or
loss to, the Property or any porƟon thereof, from any cause whatsoever, which would cost more than $10,000.00 to repair or cure. If the cost of repair or cure is

Docusign Envelope ID: 4FCFDEE1-B4E6-4406-A0E1-556105198B29Docusign Envelope ID: D072589B-EC3D-4E9D-9E71-DC16C56DB5AB
39 of 54



________ ________
________ ________
INITIALS INITIALS
© 2019 AIR CRE. All Rights Reserved. Last Edited: 12/20/2024 1:27 PM
OFAL15.30, Revised 10132022 Page 4 of 8

$10,000.00 or less, Seller shall repair or cure the loss prior to the Closing. Buyer shall have the opƟon, within 10 days aŌer receipt of wriƩen noƟce of a loss cosƟng
more than $10,000.00 to repair or cure, to either terminate this Agreement or to purchase the Property notwithstanding such loss, but without deducƟon or offset
against the Purchase Price. If the cost to repair or cure is more than $10,000.00, and Buyer does not elect to terminate this Agreement, Buyer shall be enƟtled to any
insurance proceeds applicable to such loss. Unless otherwise noƟfied in wriƟng, Escrow Holder shall assume no such destrucƟon, damage or loss has occurred prior
to Closing.

(o) Material Change. Buyer shall have 10 days following receipt of wriƩen noƟce of aMaterial Change within which to saƟsfy itself with regard to such
change. "Material Change" shall mean a substanƟal adverse change in the use, occupancy, tenants, Ɵtle, or condiƟon of the Property that occurs aŌer the date of this
offer and prior to the Closing. Unless otherwise noƟfied in wriƟng, Escrow Holder shall assume that noMaterial Change has occurred prior to the Closing.

(p) Seller Performance. The delivery of all documents and the due performance by Seller of each and every undertaking and agreement to be performed
by Seller under this Agreement.

(q) Brokerage Fee. Payment at the Closing of such brokerage fee as is specified in this Agreement or later wriƩen instrucƟons to Escrow Holder executed
by Seller and Brokers ("Brokerage Fee"). It is agreed by the ParƟes and Escrow Holder that Brokers are a third party beneficiary of this Agreement insofar as the
Brokerage Fee is concerned, and that no change shall be made with respect to the payment of the Brokerage Fee specified in this Agreement, without the wriƩen
consent of Brokers.

9.2 The conƟngencies specified in subparagraphs 9.1(a) through (m) are for the benefit of, and may be waived by, Buyer, and are referred to collecƟvely as
"Buyer's Con ngencies" and individually as a "Buyer's Con ngency."

9.3 Buyer's Ɵmely and wriƩen disapproval or condiƟonal approval of a Buyer's ConƟngency or any other maƩer that is subject to Buyer's approval in this
Agreement shall consƟtute disapproval thereof ("Disapproved Item(s)"). Concurrent with noƟce of a Disapproved Item, Buyer maymake a request to Seller regarding
such Disapproved Item ("Buyer's Request"). If Buyer fails to make a Ɵmely and wriƩen Buyer's Request, then this Agreement shall terminate due to the
nonsaƟsfacƟon and nonwaiver of a conƟngency. Seller may respond to a Buyer's Request within 10 days following Seller's receipt thereof ("Seller's Response").
Seller's acceptance of a Buyer's Request shall amend this Agreement accordingly. If Seller fails to provide a Ɵmely and wriƩen Seller's Response, then Seller's
Response shall be deemed to be a rejecƟon of Buyer's Request. Buyer may, within 10 days following the earlier of Buyer's receipt of a Seller's Response (which is not
an acceptance of Buyer's Request) or the date of Seller's deemed rejecƟon of a Buyer's Request ("Buyer's Reply Period"), reply to a Seller's Response ("Buyer's
Reply") and elect to (i) terminate this Agreement due to the nonsaƟsfacƟon and nonwaiver of the applicable conƟngency, (ii) accept the Seller's Response in which
event this Agreement shall be amended accordingly, or (iii) withdraw Buyer's Request and waive the Disapproved Item in which event Buyer shall accept the Property
subject to the Disapproved Item. If Buyer fails to provide a Ɵmely and wriƩen Buyer's Reply, then Buyer shall be deemed to have elected to terminate this Agreement
as of the end of the Buyer's Reply Period. The date Buyer accepts a Seller's Response or withdraws a Buyer's Request and waives a Disapproved Item shall be the date
of Buyer's approval of the Disapproved Item. A Party shall provide to Escrow Holder copy of all noƟces of a Disapproved Item, Buyer's Request, Seller's Response and
Buyer's Reply and Escrow Holder shall promptly provide copies thereof to the other Party. Unless the ParƟes in wriƟng agree otherwise, if the Expected Closing Date
is a specific calendar date and a Buyer's Reply Period expires aŌer such specific calendar date, then notwithstanding paragraph 1.1, the Expected Closing Date shall be
extended to be 3 business days aŌer the earlier of the date Buyer withdraws a Buyer's Request and waives the applicable Disapproved Item or Buyer accepts the
applicable Seller's Response.

9.4 The ParƟes acknowledge that extensive local, state and Federal legislaƟon establish broad liability upon owners and/or users of real property for the
invesƟgaƟon and remediaƟon of Hazardous Substances. The determinaƟon of the existence of a Hazardous Substance CondiƟon and the evaluaƟon of the impact of
such a condiƟon are highly technical and beyond the experƟse of Brokers. The ParƟes acknowledge that they have been advised by Brokers to consult their own
technical and legal experts with respect to the possible presence of Hazardous Substances on the Property or adjoining properƟes, and Buyer and Seller are not
relying upon any invesƟgaƟon by or statement of Brokers with respect thereto. The ParƟes hereby assume all responsibility for the impact of such Hazardous
Substances upon their respecƟve interests herein.

10. Documents Required at or Before Closing.
10.1 Five days prior to the Closing date Escrow Holder shall obtain an updated Title Commitment concerning the Property from the Title Company and provide

copies thereof to each of the ParƟes.
10.2 Seller shall deliver to Escrow Holder in Ɵme for delivery to Buyer at the Closing:

(a) Grant or general warranty deed, duly executed and in recordable form, conveying fee Ɵtle to the Property to Buyer.
(b) If applicable, the Beneficiary Statements concerning ExisƟng Note(s).
(c) If applicable, the ExisƟng Leases and Other Agreements together with duly executed assignments thereof by Seller and Buyer. The assignment of

ExisƟng Leases shall be on the most recent Assignment and AssumpƟon of Lessor's Interest in Lease form published by the AIR or its equivalent.
(d) An affidavit executed by Seller to the effect that Seller is not a "foreign person" within the meaning of Internal Revenue Code SecƟon 1445 or

successor statutes. If Seller does not provide such affidavit in form reasonably saƟsfactory to Buyer at least 3 business days prior to the Closing, Escrow Holder shall at
the Closing deduct from Seller's proceeds and remit to the Internal Revenue Service such sum as is required by applicable Federal law with respect to purchases from
foreign sellers.

(e) If the Property is located in California, an affidavit executed by Seller to the effect that Seller is not a ''nonresident" within the meaning of California
Revenue and Tax Code SecƟon 18662 or successor statutes. If Seller does not provide such affidavit in form reasonably saƟsfactory to Buyer at least 3 business days
prior to the Closing, Escrow Holder shall at the Closing deduct from Seller's proceeds and remit to the Franchise Tax Board such sum as is required by such statute.

(f) If applicable, a bill of sale, duly executed, conveying Ɵtle to any included personal property to Buyer.
(g) If the Seller is a corporaƟon, a duly executed corporate resoluƟon authorizing the execuƟon of this Agreement and the sale of the Property.

10.3 Buyer shall deliver to Seller through Escrow:
(a) The cash porƟon of the Purchase Price and such addiƟonal sums as are required of Buyer under this Agreement shall be deposited by Buyer with

Escrow Holder, by federal funds wire transfer, or any other method acceptable to Escrow Holder in immediately collectable funds, no later than 2:00 P.M. on the
business day prior to the Expected Closing Date provided, however, that Buyer shall not be required to deposit such monies into Escrow if at the Ɵme set for the
deposit of such monies Seller is in default or has indicated that it will not perform any of its obligaƟons hereunder. Instead, in such circumstances in order to reserve
its rights to proceed Buyer need only provide Escrow with evidence establishing that the required monies were available.

(b) If a Purchase Money Note and Purchase Money Deed of Trust are called for by this Agreement, the duly executed originals of those documents, the
Purchase Money Deed of Trust being in recordable form, together with evidence of fire insurance on the improvements in the amount of the full replacement cost
naming Seller as a mortgage loss payee, and a real estate tax service contract (at Buyer's expense), assuring Seller of noƟce of the status of payment of real property
taxes during the life of the Purchase Money Note.

(c) The Assignment and AssumpƟon of Lessor's Interest in Lease form specified in paragraph 10.2(c) above, duly executed by Buyer.
(d) AssumpƟons duly executed by Buyer of the obligaƟons of Seller that accrue aŌer Closing under any Other Agreements.
(e) If applicable, a wriƩen assumpƟon duly executed by Buyer of the loan documents with respect to ExisƟng Notes.
(f) If the Buyer is a corporaƟon, a duly executed corporate resoluƟon authorizing the execuƟon of this Agreement and the purchase of the Property.

10.4 At Closing, Escrow Holder shall cause to be issued to Buyer a standard coverage (or ALTA extended, if elected pursuant to 9.1(g)) owner's form policy of Ɵtle
insurance effecƟve as of the Closing, issued by the Title Company in the full amount of the Purchase Price, insuring Ɵtle to the Property vested in Buyer, subject only to
the excepƟons approved by Buyer. In the event there is a Purchase Money Deed of Trust in this transacƟon, the policy of Ɵtle insurance shall be a joint protecƟon
policy insuring both Buyer and Seller.
IMPORTANT: IN A PURCHASE OR EXCHANGEOF REAL PROPERTY, ITMAY BE ADVISABLE TO OBTAIN TITLE INSURANCE IN CONNECTION WITH THE CLOSE OF
ESCROW SINCE THEREMAY BE PRIOR RECORDED LIENS AND ENCUMBRANCESWHICH AFFECT YOUR INTEREST IN THE PROPERTY BEING ACQUIRED. A NEW POLICY
OF TITLE INSURANCE SHOULD BE OBTAINED IN ORDER TO ENSURE YOUR INTEREST IN THE PROPERTY THAT YOU ARE ACQUIRING.

11. Prora ons and Adjustments.
11.1 Taxes. Applicable real property taxes and special assessment bonds shall be prorated through Escrow as of the date of the Closing, based upon the latest

tax bill available. The ParƟes agree to prorate as of the Closing any taxes assessed against the Property by supplemental bill levied by reason of events occurring prior
to the Closing. Payment of the prorated amount shall be made promptly in cash upon receipt of a copy of any supplemental bill.

11.2 Insurance. WARNING: Any insurance which Seller may have maintained will terminate on the Closing. Buyer is advised to obtain appropriate insurance to
cover the Property.

11.3 Rentals, Interest and Expenses. Scheduled rentals, interest on ExisƟng Notes, uƟliƟes, and operaƟng expenses shall be prorated as of the date of Closing.
The ParƟes agree to promptly adjust between themselves outside of Escrow any rents received aŌer the Closing.

11.4 Security Deposit. Security Deposits held by Seller shall be given to Buyer as a credit to the cash required of Buyer at the Closing.
11.5 Post ClosingMa ers. Any item to be prorated that is not determined or determinable at the Closing shall be promptly adjusted by the ParƟes by

appropriate cash payment outside of the Escrow when the amount due is determined.
11.6 Varia ons in Exis ng Note Balances. In the event that Buyer is purchasing the Property subject to an ExisƟng Deed of Trust(s), and in the event that a

Docusign Envelope ID: 4FCFDEE1-B4E6-4406-A0E1-556105198B29Docusign Envelope ID: D072589B-EC3D-4E9D-9E71-DC16C56DB5AB
40 of 54



________ ________
________ ________
INITIALS INITIALS
© 2019 AIR CRE. All Rights Reserved. Last Edited: 12/20/2024 1:27 PM
OFAL15.30, Revised 10132022 Page 5 of 8

Beneficiary Statement as to the applicable ExisƟng Note(s) discloses that the unpaid principal balance of such ExisƟng Note(s) at the closing will be more or less than
the amount set forth in paragraph 3.1(c) hereof ("ExisƟng Note VariaƟon"), then the Purchase Money Note(s) shall be reduced or increased by an amount equal to
such ExisƟng Note VariaƟon. If there is to be no Purchase Money Note, the cash required at the Closing per paragraph 3.1(a) shall be reduced or increased by the
amount of such ExisƟng Note VariaƟon.

11.7 Varia ons in New Loan Balance. In the event Buyer is obtaining a New Loan and the amount ulƟmately obtained exceeds the amount set forth in
paragraph 5.1, then the amount of the Purchase Money Note, if any, shall be reduced by the amount of such excess.

11.8 Owner's Associa on Fees. Escrow Holder shall: (i) bring Seller's account with the associaƟon current and pay any delinquencies or transfer fees from
Seller's proceeds, and (ii) pay any up front fees required by the associaƟon from Buyer's funds.

12. RepresentaƟons andWarranƟes of Seller and Disclaimers.
12.1 Seller's warranƟes and representaƟons shall survive the Closing and delivery of the deed for a period of 3 years, and any lawsuit or acƟon based upon them

must be commenced within such Ɵme period. Seller's warranƟes and representaƟons are true, material and relied upon by Buyer and Brokers in all respects. Seller
hereby makes the following warranƟes and representaƟons to Buyer and Brokers:

(a) Authority of Seller. Seller is the owner of the Property and/or has the full right, power and authority to sell, convey and transfer the Property to Buyer
as provided herein, and to perform Seller's obligaƟons hereunder.

(b) Maintenance During Escrow and Equipment Condi on At Closing. Except as otherwise provided in paragraph 9.1(n) hereof, Seller shall maintain the
Property unƟl the Closing in its present condiƟon, ordinary wear and tear excepted.

(c) Hazardous Substances/Storage Tanks. Seller has no knowledge, except as otherwise disclosed to Buyer in wriƟng, of the existence or prior existence
on the Property of any Hazardous Substance, nor of the existence or prior existence of any above or below ground storage tank.

(d) Compliance. Except as otherwise disclosed in wriƟng, Seller has no knowledge of any aspect or condiƟon of the Property which violates applicable
laws, rules, regulaƟons, codes or covenants, condiƟons or restricƟons, or of improvements or alteraƟons made to the Property without a permit where one was
required, or of any unfulfilled order or direcƟve of any applicable governmental agency or casualty insurance company requiring any invesƟgaƟon, remediaƟon, repair,
maintenance or improvement be performed on the Property.

(e) Changes in Agreements. Prior to the Closing, Seller will not violate or modify any ExisƟng Lease or Other Agreement, or create any new leases or
other agreements affecƟng the Property, without Buyer's wriƩen approval, which approval will not be unreasonably withheld.

(f) Possessory Rights. Seller has no knowledge that anyone will, at the Closing, have any right to possession of the Property, except as disclosed by this
Agreement or otherwise in wriƟng to Buyer.

(g) Mechanics' Liens. There are no unsaƟsfiedmechanics' or materialmens' lien rights concerning the Property.
(h) Ac ons, Suits or Proceedings. Seller has no knowledge of any acƟons, suits or proceedings pending or threatened before any commission, board,

bureau, agency, arbitrator, court or tribunal that would affect the Property or the right to occupy or uƟlize same.
(i) No ce of Changes. Seller will promptly noƟfy Buyer and Brokers in wriƟng of anyMaterial Change (see paragraph 9.1(o)) affecƟng the Property that

becomes known to Seller prior to the Closing.
(j) No Tenant Bankruptcy Proceedings. Seller has no noƟce or knowledge that any tenant of the Property is the subject of a bankruptcy or insolvency

proceeding.
(k) No Seller Bankruptcy Proceedings. Seller is not the subject of a bankruptcy, insolvency or probate proceeding.
(l) Personal Property. Seller has no knowledge that anyone will, at the Closing, have any right to possession of any personal property included in the

Purchase Price nor knowledge of any liens or encumbrances affecƟng such personal property, except as disclosed by this Agreement or otherwise in wriƟng to Buyer.

12.2 Buyer hereby acknowledges that, except as otherwise stated in this Agreement, Buyer is purchasing the Property in its exisƟng condiƟon and will, by the
Ɵme called for herein, make or have waived all inspecƟons of the Property Buyer believes are necessary to protect its own interest in, and its contemplated use of, the
Property. The ParƟes acknowledge that, except as otherwise stated in this Agreement, no representaƟons, inducements, promises, agreements, assurances, oral or
wriƩen, concerning the Property, or any aspect of the occupaƟonal safety and health laws, Hazardous Substance laws, or any other act, ordinance or law, have been
made by either Party or Brokers, or relied upon by either Party hereto.

12.3 In the event that Buyer learns that a Seller representaƟon or warranty might be untrue prior to the Closing, and Buyer elects to purchase the Property
anyway then, and in that event, Buyer waives any right that it may have to bring an acƟon or proceeding against Seller or Brokers regarding said representaƟon or
warranty.

12.4 Any environmental reports, soils reports, surveys, feasibility studies, and other similar documents which were prepared by third party consultants and
provided to Buyer by Seller or Seller's representaƟves, have been delivered as an accommodaƟon to Buyer and without any representaƟon or warranty as to the
sufficiency, accuracy, completeness, and/or validity of said documents, all of which Buyer relies on at its own risk. Seller believes said documents to be accurate, but
Buyer is advised to retain appropriate consultants to review said documents and invesƟgate the Property.

13. Possession.
Possession of the Property shall be given to Buyer at the Closing subject to the rights of tenants under ExisƟng Leases.

14. Buyer's Entry.
At any Ɵme during the Escrow period, Buyer, and its agents and representaƟves, shall have the right at reasonable Ɵmes and subject to rights of tenants, to enter upon
the Property for the purpose of making inspecƟons and tests specified in this Agreement. No destrucƟve tesƟng shall be conducted, however, without Seller's prior
approval which shall not be unreasonably withheld. Following any such entry or work, unless otherwise directed in wriƟng by Seller, Buyer shall return the Property to
the condiƟon it was in prior to such entry or work, including the recompacƟon or removal of any disrupted soil or material as Seller may reasonably direct. All such
inspecƟons and tests and any other work conducted or materials furnished with respect to the Property by or for Buyer shall be paid for by Buyer as and when due
and Buyer shall indemnify, defend, protect and hold harmless Seller and the Property of and from any and all claims, liabiliƟes, losses, expenses (including reasonable
aƩorneys' fees), damages, including those for injury to person or property, arising out of or relaƟng to any such work or materials or the acts or omissions of Buyer, its
agents or employees in connecƟon therewith.

15. Further Documents and Assurances.
The ParƟes shall each, diligently and in good faith, undertake all acƟons and procedures reasonably required to place the Escrow in condiƟon for Closing as and when
required by this Agreement. The ParƟes agree to provide all further informaƟon, and to execute and deliver all further documents, reasonably required by Escrow
Holder or the Title Company.

16. AƩorneys' Fees.
If any Party or Broker brings an acƟon or proceeding (including arbitraƟon) involving the Property whether founded in tort, contract or equity, or to declare rights
hereunder, the Prevailing Party (as hereaŌer defined) in any such proceeding, acƟon, or appeal thereon, shall be enƟtled to reasonable aƩorneys' fees and costs. Such
fees may be awarded in the same suit or recovered in a separate suit, whether or not such acƟon or proceeding is pursued to decision or judgment. The term
"Prevailing Party" shall include, without limitaƟon, a Party or Broker who substanƟally obtains or defeats the relief sought, as the case may be, whether by
compromise, seƩlement, judgment, or the abandonment by the other Party or Broker of its claim or defense. The aƩorneys' fees award shall not be computed in
accordance with any court fee schedule, but shall be such as to fully reimburse all aƩorneys' fees reasonably incurred.

17. Prior Agreements/Amendments.
17.1 This Agreement supersedes any and all prior agreements between Seller and Buyer regarding the Property.
17.2 Amendments to this Agreement are effecƟve only if made in wriƟng and executed by Buyer and Seller.

18. Broker's Rights.
18.1 If this sale is not consummated due to the default of either the Buyer or Seller, the defaulƟng Party shall be liable to and shall pay to Brokers the Brokerage

Fee that Brokers would have received had the sale been consummated. If Buyer is the defaulƟng party, payment of said Brokerage Fee is in addiƟon to any obligaƟon
with respect to liquidated or other damages.

18.2 Upon the Closing, Brokers are authorized to publicize the facts of this transacƟon.

19. NoƟces.
19.1 Whenever any Party, Escrow Holder or Brokers herein shall desire to give or serve any noƟce, demand, request, approval, disapproval or other

communicaƟon, each such communicaƟon shall be in wriƟng and shall be delivered personally, by messenger, or by mail, postage prepaid, to the address set forth in
this agreement or by facsimile transmission, electronic signature, digital signature, or email.

19.2 Service of any such communicaƟon shall be deemedmade on the date of actual receipt if personally delivered, or transmiƩed by facsimile transmission,
electronic signature, digital signature, or email. Any such communicaƟon sent by regular mail shall be deemed given 48 hours aŌer the same is mailed.

Docusign Envelope ID: 4FCFDEE1-B4E6-4406-A0E1-556105198B29Docusign Envelope ID: D072589B-EC3D-4E9D-9E71-DC16C56DB5AB
41 of 54



________ ________
________ ________
INITIALS INITIALS
© 2019 AIR CRE. All Rights Reserved. Last Edited: 12/20/2024 1:27 PM
OFAL15.30, Revised 10132022 Page 6 of 8

CommunicaƟons sent by United States Express Mail or overnight courier that guarantee next day delivery shall be deemed delivered 24 hours aŌer delivery of the
same to the Postal Service or courier. If such communicaƟon is received on a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, it shall be deemed received on the next business day.

19.3 Any Party or Broker hereto may from Ɵme to Ɵme, by noƟce in wriƟng, designate a different address to which, or a different person or addiƟonal persons
to whom, all communicaƟons are thereaŌer to be made.

20. DuraƟon of Offer.
20.1 If this offer is not accepted by Seller on or before 5:00 P.M. according to the Ɵme standard applicable to the city of Patterson, CA on the

date of December 24, 2025 , it shall be deemed automaƟcally revoked.
20.2 The acceptance of this offer, or of any subsequent counteroffer hereto, that creates an agreement between the ParƟes as described in paragraph 1.2, shall

be deemed made upon delivery to the other Party or either Broker herein of a duly executed wriƟng uncondiƟonally accepƟng the last outstanding offer or
counteroffer.

21. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. (This Liquidated Damages paragraph is applicable only if iniƟaled by both ParƟes).
THE PARTIES AGREE THAT ITWOULD BE IMPRACTICABLE OR EXTREMELY DIFFICULT TO FIX, PRIOR TO SIGNING THIS AGREEMENT, THE ACTUAL DAMAGES WHICH
WOULD BE SUFFERED BY SELLER IF BUYER FAILS TO PERFORM ITS OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. THEREFORE, IF, AFTER THE SATISFACTION ORWAIVER
OF ALL CONTINGENCIES PROVIDED FOR THE BUYER'S BENEFIT, BUYER BREACHES THIS AGREEMENT, SELLER SHALL BE ENTITLED TO LIQUIDATED DAMAGES IN THE
AMOUNT OF $100,000 . UPON PAYMENT OF SAID SUM TO SELLER, BUYER SHALL BE RELEASED FROM ANY FURTHER LIABILITY TO SELLER, AND ANY
ESCROW CANCELLATION FEES AND TITLE COMPANY CHARGES SHALL BE PAID BY SELLER.

Buyer's IniƟals Seller's IniƟals

22. ARBITRATION OF DISPUTES. (This ArbitraƟon of Disputes paragraph is applicable only if iniƟaled by both ParƟes.)
22.1 ANY CONTROVERSY AS TO WHETHER SELLER IS ENTITLED TO LIQUIDATED DAMAGES AND/OR BUYER IS ENTITLED TO THE RETURNOF THE DEPOSIT

SHALL BE DETERMINED BY BINDING ARBITRATION ADMINISTERED BY THE JUDICIAL ARBITRATION &MEDIATION SERVICES, INC. ("JAMS") IN ACCORDANCEWITH
ITS COMMERCIAL ARBITRATION RULES ("COMMERCIAL RULES"). ARBITRATION HEARINGS SHALL BE HELD IN THE COUNTYWHERE THE PROPERTY IS LOCATED.
SUCH CONTROVERSY SHALL BE ARBITRATED BY A SINGLE ARBITRATOR, APPOINTED UNDER THE COMMERCIAL RULES WHOHAS HAD AT LEAST 5 YEARS OF
EXPERIENCE IN THE TYPE OF REAL ESTATE THAT IS THE SUBJECT OF THIS AGREEMENT. THE ARBITRATOR SHALL HEAR AND DETERMINE SAID CONTROVERSY IN
ACCORDANCEWITH APPLICABLE LAW OF THE JURISDICTION WHERE THE PROPERTY IS LOCATED, THE INTENTION OF THE PARTIES AS EXPRESSED IN THIS
AGREEMENT AND ANY AMENDMENTS THERETO, ANDUPON THE EVIDENCE PRODUCED AT AN ARBITRATION HEARING. PREARBITRATION DISCOVERY SHALL BE
PERMITTED IN ACCORDANCEWITH THE COMMERCIAL RULES OR STATE LAWAPPLICABLE TO ARBITRATION PROCEEDINGS. THE ARBITRATOR SHALL RENDER AN
AWARDWITHIN 30 DAYS AFTER THE CONCLUSION OF THE HEARING,WHICH MAY INCLUDE ATTORNEYS' FEES AND COSTS TO THE PREVAILING PARTY PER
PARAGRAPH 16 HEREOF AND SHALL BE ACCOMPANIED BY A REASONEDOPINION. THE FAILURE OR REFUSAL OF A PARTY TO PAY SUCH PARTY'S REQUIRED SHARE
OF THE DEPOSITS FOR ARBITRATOR COMPENSATIONOR ADMINISTRATIVE CHARGES SHALL CONSTITUTE AWAIVER BY SUCH PARTY TO PRESENT EVIDENCE OR
CROSSEXAMINEWITNESSES, BUT SUCH WAIVER SHALL NOT ALLOW FOR ADEFAULT JUDGMENT AGAINST THE NONPAYING PARTY IN THE ABSENCE OF EVIDENCE
AND LEGAL ARGUMENT AS THE ARBITRATORMAY REQUIRE FOR MAKING AN AWARD. JUDGMENTMAY BE ENTERED ON THE AWARD IN ANY COURT OF
COMPETENT JURISDICTION NOTWITHSTANDING THE FAILURE OF A PARTY DULY NOTIFIED OF THE ARBITRATION HEARING TO APPEAR THEREAT.

22.2 BUYER'S RESORT TO OR PARTICIPATION IN SUCH ARBITRATION PROCEEDINGS SHALL NOT BAR SUIT IN A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION BY THE
BUYER FOR DAMAGES AND/OR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE UNLESS AND UNTIL THE ARBITRATION RESULTS IN AN AWARD TO THE SELLER OF LIQUIDATED DAMAGES, IN
WHICH EVENT SUCH AWARD SHALL ACT AS A BAR AGAINST ANY ACTION BY BUYER FOR DAMAGES AND/OR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE.

22.3 NOTICE: BY INITIALING IN THE SPACE BELOW YOU ARE AGREEING TO HAVE ANY DISPUTE ARISING OUT OF THEMATTERS INCLUDED IN THE "ARBITRATION
OF DISPUTES" PROVISION DECIDED BY NEUTRAL ARBITRATION AS PROVIDED BY CALIFORNIA LAWAND YOU ARE GIVING UP ANY RIGHTS YOUMIGHT POSSESS TO
HAVE THE DISPUTE LITIGATED IN A COURT OR JURY TRIAL. BY INITIALING IN THE SPACE BELOW YOU ARE GIVING UP YOUR JUDICIAL RIGHTS TO DISCOVERY AND
APPEAL, UNLESS SUCH RIGHTS ARE SPECIFICALLY INCLUDED IN THE "ARBITRATION OF DISPUTES" PROVISION. IF YOU REFUSE TO SUBMIT TO ARBITRATION AFTER
AGREEING TO THIS PROVISION, YOUMAY BE COMPELLED TO ARBITRATE UNDER THE AUTHORITY OF THE CALIFORNIA CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE. YOUR AGREEMENT
TO THIS ARBITRATION PROVISION IS VOLUNTARY.

WE HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND THE FOREGOING AND AGREE TO SUBMIT DISPUTES ARISING OUT OF THE MATTERS INCLUDED IN THE "ARBITRATION OF DISPUTES"
PROVISION TO NEUTRAL ARBITRATION.

Buyer's IniƟals Seller's IniƟals

23. Miscellaneous.
23.1 Binding Effect. Buyer and Seller both acknowledge that they have carefully read and reviewed this Agreement and each term and provision contained

herein. In addiƟon, this Agreement shall be binding on the ParƟes without regard to whether or not paragraphs 21 and 22 are iniƟaled by both of the ParƟes.
Paragraphs 21 and 22 are each incorporated into this Agreement only if iniƟaled by both ParƟes at the Ɵme that the Agreement is executed. Signatures to this
Agreement accomplished by means of electronic signature or similar technology shall be legal and binding.

23.2 Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, and paragraph 22.3 is amended to refer to, the laws of the state in which the Property is located.
Any liƟgaƟon or arbitraƟon between the ParƟes hereto concerning this Agreement shall be iniƟated in the county in which the Property is located.

23.3 Time of Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement.
23.4 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed by Buyer and Seller in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which together

shall consƟtute one and the same instrument. Escrow Holder, aŌer verifying that the counterparts are idenƟcal except for the signatures, is authorized and instructed
to combine the signed signature pages on one of the counterparts, which shall then consƟtute the Agreement.

23.5 Waiver of Jury Trial. THE PARTIES HEREBYWAIVE THEIR RESPECTIVE RIGHTS TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING INVOLVING THE
PROPERTY OR ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT.

23.6 Conflict. Any conflict between the printed provisions of this Agreement and the typewriƩen or handwriƩen provisions shall be controlled by the
typewriƩen or handwriƩen provisions. Seller and Buyer must iniƟal any and all handwriƩen provisions.

23.7 1031 Exchange. Both Seller and Buyer agree to cooperate with each other in the event that either or both wish to parƟcipate in a 1031 exchange. Any
party iniƟaƟng an exchange shall bear all costs of such exchange. The cooperaƟng Party shall not have any liability (special or otherwise) for damages to the
exchanging Party in the event that the sale is delayed and/or that the sale otherwise fails to qualify as a 1031 exchange.

23.8 Days. Unless otherwise specifically indicated to the contrary, the word "days" as used in this Agreement shall mean and refer to calendar days.

24. Disclosures Regarding the Nature of a Real Estate Agency RelaƟonship.
24.1 The ParƟes and Brokers agree that their relaƟonship(s) shall be governed by the principles set forth in the applicable secƟons of the California Civil Code, as

summarized in paragraph 24.2.
24.2 When entering into a discussion with a real estate agent regarding a real estate transacƟon, a Buyer or Seller should from the outset understand what type

of agency relaƟonship or representaƟon it has with the agent or agents in the transacƟon. Buyer and Seller acknowledge being advised by the Brokers in this
transacƟon, as follows:

(a) Seller's Agent. A Seller's agent under a lisƟng agreement with the Seller acts as the agent for the Seller only. A Seller's agent or subagent has the
following affirmaƟve obligaƟons: (1) To the Seller: A fiduciary duty of utmost care, integrity, honesty, and loyalty in dealings with the Seller. (2) To the Buyer and the
Seller: a. Diligent exercise of reasonable skills and care in performance of the agent's duƟes. b. A duty of honest and fair dealing and good faith. c. A duty to disclose
all facts known to the agent materially affecƟng the value or desirability of the property that are not known to, or within the diligent aƩenƟon and observaƟon of, the
ParƟes. An agent is not obligated to reveal to either Party any confidenƟal informaƟon obtained from the other Party which does not involve the affirmaƟve duƟes set
forth above.

(b) Buyer's Agent. A selling agent can, with a Buyer's consent, agree to act as agent for the Buyer only. In these situaƟons, the agent is not the Seller's
agent, even if by agreement the agent may receive compensaƟon for services rendered, either in full or in part from the Seller. An agent acƟng only for a Buyer has
the following affirmaƟve obligaƟons. (1) To the Buyer: A fiduciary duty of utmost care, integrity, honesty, and loyalty in dealings with the Buyer. (2) To the Buyer and

Docusign Envelope ID: 4FCFDEE1-B4E6-4406-A0E1-556105198B29Docusign Envelope ID: D072589B-EC3D-4E9D-9E71-DC16C56DB5AB
42 of 54



________ ________
________ ________
INITIALS INITIALS
© 2019 AIR CRE. All Rights Reserved. Last Edited: 12/20/2024 1:27 PM
OFAL15.30, Revised 10132022 Page 7 of 8

the Seller: a. Diligent exercise of reasonable skills and care in performance of the agent's duƟes. b. A duty of honest and fair dealing and good faith. c. A duty to
disclose all facts known to the agent materially affecƟng the value or desirability of the property that are not known to, or within the diligent aƩenƟon and
observaƟon of, the ParƟes. An agent is not obligated to reveal to either Party any confidenƟal informaƟon obtained from the other Party which does not involve the
affirmaƟve duƟes set forth above.

(c) Agent Represen ng Both Seller and Buyer. A real estate agent, either acƟng directly or through one ormore associate licensees, can legally be the
agent of both the Seller and the Buyer in a transacƟon, but only with the knowledge and consent of both the Seller and the Buyer. (1) In a dual agency situaƟon, the
agent has the following affirmaƟve obligaƟons to both the Seller and the Buyer: a. A fiduciary duty of utmost care, integrity, honesty and loyalty in the dealings with
either Seller or the Buyer. b. Other duƟes to the Seller and the Buyer as stated above in their respecƟve secƟons (a) or (b) of this paragraph 24.2. (2) In represenƟng
both Seller and Buyer, the agent may not, without the express permission of the respecƟve Party, disclose to the other Party confidenƟal informaƟon, including, but
not limited to, facts relaƟng to either Buyer's or Seller's financial posiƟon, moƟvaƟons, bargaining posiƟon, or other personal informaƟon that may impact price,
including Seller's willingness to accept a price less than the lisƟng price or Buyer's willingness to pay a price greater than the price offered. (3) The above duƟes of the
agent in a real estate transacƟon do not relieve a Seller or Buyer from the responsibility to protect their own interests. Buyer and Seller should carefully read all
agreements to assure that they adequately express their understanding of the transacƟon. A real estate agent is a person qualified to advise about real estate. If legal
or tax advice is desired, consult a competent professional. Buyer has the duty to exercise reasonable care to protect Buyer, including as to those facts about the
Property which are known to Buyer or within Buyer's diligent aƩenƟon and observaƟon. Both Seller and Buyer should strongly consider obtaining tax advice from a
competent professional because the federal and state tax consequences of a transacƟon can be complex and subject to change.

(d) Further Disclosures. Throughout this transacƟon Buyer and Seller may receive more than one disclosure, depending upon the number of agents
assisƟng in the transacƟon. Buyer and Seller should each read its contents each Ɵme it is presented, considering the relaƟonship between them and the real estate
agent in this transacƟon and that disclosure. Buyer and Seller each acknowledge receipt of a disclosure of the possibility of mulƟple representaƟon by the Broker
represenƟng that principal. This disclosure may be part of a lisƟng agreement, buyer representaƟon agreement or separate document. Buyer understands that
Broker represenƟng Buyer may also represent other potenƟal buyers, whomay consider, make offers on or ulƟmately acquire the Property. Seller understands that
Broker represenƟng Seller may also represent other sellers with compeƟng properƟes that may be of interest to this Buyer. Brokers have no responsibility with
respect to any default or breach hereof by either Party. The ParƟes agree that no lawsuit or other legal proceeding involving any breach of duty, error or omission
relaƟng to this transacƟon may be brought against Broker more than one year aŌer the Date of Agreement and that the liability (including court costs and aƩorneys'
fees), of any Broker with respect to any breach of duty, error or omission relaƟng to this Agreement shall not exceed the fee received by such Broker pursuant to this
Agreement; provided, however, that the foregoing limitaƟon on each Broker's liability shall not be applicable to any gross negligence or willful misconduct of such
Broker.

24.3 Confiden al Informa on. Buyer and Seller agree to idenƟfy to Brokers as "ConfidenƟal" any communicaƟon or informaƟon given Brokers that is considered
by such Party to be confidenƟal.

25. ConstrucƟon of Agreement. In construing this Agreement, all headings and Ɵtles are for the convenience of the ParƟes only and shall not be considered a part
of this Agreement. Whenever required by the context, the singular shall include the plural and vice versa. This Agreement shall not be construed as if prepared by
one of the ParƟes, but rather according to its fair meaning as a whole, as if both ParƟes had prepared it.

26. AddiƟonal Provisions.
AddiƟonal provisions of this offer, if any, are as follows or are aƩached hereto by an addendum or addenda consisƟng of paragraphs through

. (If there are no addiƟonal provisions write "NONE".)
None.

ATTENTION: NO REPRESENTATIONOR RECOMMENDATION ISMADE BY AIR CRE OR BY ANY BROKER AS TO THE LEGAL SUFFICIENCY, LEGAL EFFECT, OR TAX
CONSEQUENCES OF THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTION TOWHICH IT RELATES. THE PARTIES ARE URGED TO:

1. SEEK ADVICE OF COUNSEL AS TO THE LEGAL AND TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THIS AGREEMENT.
2. RETAIN APPROPRIATE CONSULTANTS TO REVIEW AND INVESTIGATE THE CONDITION OF THE PROPERTY. SAID INVESTIGATION SHOULD INCLUDE BUT NOT
BE LIMITED TO: THE POSSIBLE PRESENCE OF HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES, THE ZONING OF THE PROPERTY, THE INTEGRITY AND CONDITION OF ANY STRUCTURES
ANDOPERATING SYSTEMS, AND THE SUITABILITY OF THE PROPERTY FOR BUYER'S INTENDED USE.

WARNING: IF THE PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN A STATE OTHER THAN CALIFORNIA, CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENTMAY NEED TO BE REVISED TO
COMPLYWITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE INWHICH THE PROPERTY IS LOCATED.

NOTE:
1. THIS FORM IS NOT FOR USE IN CONNECTIONWITH THE SALE OF RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY.
2. IF EITHER PARTY IS A CORPORATION, IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THIS AGREEMENT BE SIGNED BY TWO CORPORATE OFFICERS.

The undersigned Buyer offers and agrees to buy the Property on the terms and condiƟons stated and acknowledges receipt of a copy hereof.

BROKER

AƩn:
Title:

Address:
Phone:
Fax:
Email:
Federal ID No.:
Broker DRE License #:
Agent DRE License #:

Date:

BUYER

Del Puerto Health Care District or related
entity

By:
Name Printed: Karin Freese
Title: CEO
Phone: 209-894-8201
Fax: 209-892-3755
Email: karin.freese@dphealth.org

By:
Name Printed:
Title:
Phone:
Fax:
Email:

Address: PO Box 187, Patterson, CA 95363
Federal ID No.:

27. Acceptance.
27.1 Seller accepts the foregoing offer to purchase the Property and hereby agrees to sell the Property to Buyer on the terms and condiƟons therein specified.
27.2 In consideraƟon of real estate brokerage service rendered by Brokers, Seller agrees to pay Brokers a real estate Brokerage Fee in a sum equal to

4 % of the Purchase Price to be divided between the Brokers as follows: Seller's Broker % and Buyer's Broker %. This
Agreement shall serve as an irrevocable instrucƟon to Escrow Holder to pay such Brokerage Fee to Brokers out of the proceeds accruing to the account of Seller at the
Closing.

Docusign Envelope ID: 4FCFDEE1-B4E6-4406-A0E1-556105198B29

2024-Dec-20 | 16:32 PST

Docusign Envelope ID: D072589B-EC3D-4E9D-9E71-DC16C56DB5AB
43 of 54



________ ________
________ ________
INITIALS INITIALS
© 2019 AIR CRE. All Rights Reserved. Last Edited: 12/20/2024 1:27 PM
OFAL15.30, Revised 10132022 Page 8 of 8

27.3 Seller acknowledges receipt of a copy hereof and authorizes Brokers to deliver a signed copy to Buyer.

NOTE: A PROPERTY INFORMATION SHEET IS REQUIRED TO BE DELIVERED TO BUYER BY SELLER UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.

BROKER

Lee & Associates - Central Valley, Inc.
AƩn: Christopher Sill
Title: Senior Vice President
Address: 241 Frank West Circle, Ste 300,
Stockton, CA 95206
Phone: 209-983-1111
Fax: 209-982-0167
Email: csill@lee-associates.com
Federal ID No.:
Broker DRE License #: 01166901
Agent's DRE License #: 01188616

Date:

SELLER

The Mahaffey Family Limited Partnership, a
California Limited Partnership

By:
Name Printed: Michael Mahaffey
Title:
Phone:
Fax:
Email: mahaffey469@gmail.com

By:
Name Printed:
Title:
Phone:
Fax:
Email:

Address: PO Box 307, Patterson, CA 95363
Federal ID No.:

AIR CRE * hƩps://www.aircre.com * 2136878777 * contracts@aircre.com
NOTICE: No part of these works may be reproduced in any formwithout permission in wriƟng.

Docusign Envelope ID: 4FCFDEE1-B4E6-4406-A0E1-556105198B29Docusign Envelope ID: D072589B-EC3D-4E9D-9E71-DC16C56DB5AB

2024-Dec-23 | 10:49 PST

44 of 54



BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
Board Meeting – January 13, 2025 

9F. HMA Proposal Page 1 of 2 

 

https://delpuerto.sharepoint.com/sites/board/shared documents/board meetings/2025/01-jan 13 special meeting/9f. 
hmsa proposal agenda item.docx 1/10/2025 

Department:  Chief Executive Office CEO Concurrence:   Yes  

Consent Calendar: No 4/5 Vote Required: No 

 
 

SUBJECT:   Approval of HMA Letter Agreement for Assistance with CY 2024 
Voluntary Rate Range Program (VRRP) 

STAFF REPORT: The Health Management Associates (HMA) proposal outlines their scope 
of services to assist Del Puerto Health Care District in determining 
eligibility and facilitating participation in the CY 2024 Voluntary Rate 
Range Program (VRRP). Key activities include determining potential 
funding availability, engaging with managed care plans (HPSJ and 
Health Net), and supporting the submission of required documentation. 

 While eligibility is not guaranteed, HMA has clarified that the District 
would only incur charges proportional to initial investigative efforts if it 
is determined that participation in VRRP is not feasible. If successful, 
this program could generate significant additional revenue for the 
District’s ambulance services. 

 Discussion Points: 

• Eligibility Determination: HMA will engage with MCPs to 
assess available “rate range” capacity and determine if Del 
Puerto qualifies for participation. 

• Potential Impact: If eligible, an additional $1,000 per Medi-Cal 
transport could yield $300,000 in additional annual revenue 
(based on 300 Medi-Cal transports). 

• Risks: If MCPs decline participation or program funds are 
exhausted, Del Puerto’s eligibility would be limited, and no costs 
beyond the inquiry would be incurred. 

• Cost: Total fees for HMA services are capped at $35,000 on a 
time-and-materials basis. 

DISTRICT PRIORITY: Pursuing opportunities to increase revenue to support critical ambulance 
and healthcare services for the community. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Up to $35,000 in consulting fees, with the potential to generate up to 
$300,000 in additional annual revenue if the District is approved for the 
VRRP. 

STAFFING IMPACT: Collaboration with consultant and health plans 

CONTACT PERSON: Karin Freese, CEO 

45 of 54



BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
Board Meeting – January 13, 2025 

9F. HMA Proposal Page 2 of 2 

 

https://delpuerto.sharepoint.com/sites/board/shared documents/board meetings/2025/01-jan 13 special meeting/9f. 
hmsa proposal agenda item.docx 1/10/2025 

ATTACHMENT(S): HMA Letter Agreement for CY 2024 VRRP 
 Steve Soto responses to emailed questions 
 
RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION: 
 
ROLL CALL REQUIRED: YES  
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  I move that the Board of Directors approve the HMA Letter Agreement 

for assistance with the CY 2024 Voluntary Rate Range Program (VRRP) 
at a cost not to exceed $35,000 and authorize the Chief Executive Officer 
to execute the agreement. 

 
Motion Made By Motion Second 
Director Avila   
Director Campo   
Director Ramirez   
Director Stokman   
Director Traore   

 
Roll Call Vote Aye No Abstain Absent 
Director Avila     
Director Campo     
Director Ramirez     
Director Stokman     
Director Traore     

 
 

46 of 54



H E A L T H  M A N A G E M E N T  A S S O C I A T E S  
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
2501 WOODLAKE CIR, STE 100, OKEMOS, MI 48864 

TELEPHONE: 517.482.9236| FAX: 517.482.0920 
WWW.HEALTHMANAGEMENT.COM 

January 8, 2025 
 
 
Karin Freese 
Chief Executive Officer 
Del Puerto Health Care District 
1700 Keystone Parkway Suite B 
Patterson, CA 9563 
 

Re: Summary of Services 

 

Dear Karin: 

On behalf of Health Management Associates, Inc. (HMA), thank you for the opportunity to submit our 
proposal to provide consultative services to Del Puerto Health Care District. Based on Del Puerto’s 
request for assistance with the CY 2024 Value Rate Range Program (VRRP), HMA has developed this 
agreement for your review. 

HMA has successfully assisted government entities, working directly with federal, state, and local 
government agencies, health systems, health plans, providers, foundations, investors, community 
organizations, and associations to effect change. We stand ready to assist Del Puerto with this work. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

HMA will provide the following services and any other tasks, as requested: 

 Research and investigate to determine the opportunity for Del Puerto in the CY 2024 Voluntary 
Rate Range Program (VRRP). 

 Provide assistance and support to Del Puerto with participation in the in the CY 2024 VRRP. This 
work will include the following: 

o Provide initial information and education to Del Puerto regarding participation in the 
VRRP process; this may take the form of conference calls and the provision of written 
materials. As necessary, HMA will collaborate with executive managers, elected officials, 
attorneys, and others throughout the VRRP process. 

o Assist Del Puerto to identify and submit its costs for the provision of plan services to 
plan patients during the reporting year to which the VRRP pertains. This involves 
understanding the California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) requirements 
for calculating unreimbursed costs, etc. 

o Provide financial calculations to Del Puerto regarding the dollar amounts involved in 
their VRRP at each step of the process. 

o Communicate with DHCS and/or other county partners regarding any issue related to 
the VRRP including but not limited to the VRRP timelines, document language, etc. 

o Provide Del Puerto with drafts for their approval of any VRRP documents required by 
DHCS, including the Health Plan-Provider Agreement and the Intergovernmental 
Agreement with DHCS. These drafts will be based on the latest document templates 
provided by DHCS, modified to include information specific to Health Plan of San Joquin 
(HPSJ), Kaiser, and Health Net.  

47 of 54



Del Puerto_VRRP 
1/8/2025 
Page 2 

Project #  V.2024.7 

o Provide instruction and support to Del Puerto regarding the timely execution and 
transmittal of the final signed documents to DHCS. 

o Assist Del Puerto with any issues regarding the wiring of funds to DHCS and the payment 
of the VRRP-funded proceeds by the plan. 

o Perform other activities as required to support the efficient and prompt implementation 
of the VRRP process. 

DELIVERABLES 

Pursuant to the Scope of Services discussed above, we will provide the following deliverables: 

 Deliverable Description Date 

1. 

Research and investigate to 
determine the opportunity 
for Del Puerto in the CY 2024 
VRRP. 

HMA will reach out to HPSJ, Health Net, 
and Kaiser to determine the opportunity 
for Del Puerto to participate in the CY 
2024 VRRP 

By January 22, 
2025 

2. Assist Del Puerto with CY 
2024 VRRP process 

HMA will:  

 Provide information and education to 
Del Puerto regarding participation in 
the VRRP process 

 Assist Del Puerto to identify and 
submit its costs for the provision of 
plan services 

 Communicate with DHCS and/or HPSJ, 
Health Net, and Kaiser 

 Provide Del Puerto with drafts for their 
approval of any VRRP documents 
required by DHCS 

 Provide instruction and support to Del 
Puerto regarding the timely execution 
and transmittal of the final signed 
documents to DHCS 

 Assist Del Puerto with any issues 
regarding the wiring of funds to DHCS 
and the payment of the VRRP-funded 
proceeds by the plan; and 

 Perform other activities as required to 
support the efficient and prompt 
implementation of the VRRP process 

Ongoing from 
January 2025 
through December 
2025 

3. 

Provide financial calculations 
to Del Puerto regarding the 
dollar amounts involved in 
their CY 2024 VRRP  

HMA will provide an estimate of the funds 
that Del Puerto needs to wire to DHCS as 
well as the matching amount it will 
receive.  

TBD based on 
release of 
information from 
DHCS  

 

48 of 54



Del Puerto_VRRP 
1/8/2025 
Page 3 

Project #  V.2024.7 

STAFFING 

Nai Kasick will serve as the project manager and will ensure timely completion of deliverables, 
coordinate team activities, and provide consistent communication with Del Puerto Healthcare District.  
Steve Soto and Jason Silva will be the primary staff on this project. Additional HMA staff will provide 
services for the project, as appropriate. 

TERM OF AGREEMENT 

This Agreement will begin on December 23, 2024  and shall continue in effect until December 31, 2025, 
unless terminated earlier by either party giving the other party thirty (30) days written notice of 
termination. If this Agreement is terminated by a party's written notice of termination, you agree to 
compensate HMA for all services rendered prior to HMA's actual knowledge of termination and for all 
out-of-pocket expenses incurred to date. The staffing arrangements and the scope of work stated in this 
letter apply to this project only. 

PROJECT FEES 

The services described above will be provided on a time-and-materials basis. In addition, all out-of-
pocket expenses will be reimbursed. Professional hourly rates and travel time will be billed as indicated 
in the table below. Based on the currently available information, we estimate professional fees and 
travel time will not exceed $35,000, including expenses. At this time, no expenses or travel time are 
anticipated for the services described above. As the project progresses, additional requests are made, or 
the scope evolves, we will provide updated estimates on the overall professional fees and expenses if 
necessary. We will submit invoices monthly for services provided in the previous month. These invoices 
will be payable upon receipt. 

HMA billing rates increase on January 1 of each calendar year unless agreed otherwise in writing. The 
parties agree that the January 1, 2025 rate increase shall be waived and the hourly rates herein will 
remain in effect through December 31, 2025 unless otherwise agreed to in a written amendment signed 
by both parties.  

49 of 54



Del Puerto Health Care District 

z:\sharedcloud\hydra\data\tmp\pool-6-thread-1-10157754315842652308.octo\8926af01-54d9-4c02-9a40-
45da49e02d06.docx  1/8/2025 

From: Steve Soto <ssoto@healthmanagement.com>  
Sent: Friday, January 3, 2025 3:15 PM 
To: Karin Freese, Ph.D. <karin.freese@dphealth.org> 
Cc: Jason Silva <jsilva@healthmanagement.com>; Nai Kasick <nkasick@healthmanagement.com> 
Subject: RE: Voluntary Rate Range Program LOA  

 
1. Regarding the opportunity for Del Puerto in the CY 2024 Voluntary Rate Range Program (VRRP), 

the proposal suggests that eligibility may not be guaranteed: 
a. Is this application essentially a blind request to determine if funds are available? (My 

board would not be pleased if we spent $35,000 only to find out we’re not eligible!) We 
understand, and Del Puerto would not be charged the full proposal amount of $35K, but 
only an amount for Jason to find out if you can participate in the Health Plan of San 
Joaquin (HPSJ) and Health Net (HNet) CY 2024 VRRP process. 

b. Do you have any additional insight into Stanislaus County’s position on this matter? No, 
but the deciding parties here are the two managed care plans (MCPs) and their 
willingness to let Del Puerto participate and be allocated funding from their available rate 
range room. 

2. Do you know if there is unused capacity in Stanislaus County reimbursement funds?  Part of what 
Jason would be doing is asking both plans this question regarding their current utilization of their 
available rate range room, and how much their current participants in the VRRP absorb available 
space. 

a. For instance, if our expense per ambulance transport is $1,500 and we currently 
receive $550 in reimbursement (net of the non-federal share of the IGT), there could 
be potential for an additional $1,000 per Medi-Cal transport. 

b. This would equate to $1,000 multiplied by 300 Medi-Cal transports, potentially 
generating an additional $300,000 in revenue for the DPHCD ambulance program, 
which would be significant. 

c. What happens if the County has already exhausted its program funds?  Jason would 
be finding out the answer to this first question before any work was done on helping 
Del Puerto get into the VRRP. 

d. How is the distribution of funds determined?  MCPs determine how they allocate their 
available rate range room amongst governmental entities that express interest and 
are approved by the MCPs to participate in the VRRP. 

 

50 of 54



BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

Special Board Meeting – January 13, 2025 

9G. Appointment to Vacant Board Seat9G. Appointment to Vacant Board Seat  Page 1 of 2 

 

z:\sharedcloud\hydra\data\tmp\pool-6-thread-1-8848097771029313690.octo\bc06fc11-d34a-47ab-8b51-
dc4628e731fa.docx 1/8/2025 

Department:  Chief Executive Office CEO Concurrence:   Yes  

Consent Calendar:  No 4/5 Vote Required: No 

 

 

SUBJECT:   Appointment to Vacant Board Seat 

RECOMMENDATION: Proposed candidates be interviewed by full Board, appoint best 

candidate, administer Oath of Office.  New Director assumes seat 

immediately. 

DISTRICT PRIORITY: Local Governance 

POLICY ISSUE: Process to fill Board seats mid-term. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

STAFFING IMPACT: None 

CONTACT PERSON: Karin Freese, CEO 

ATTACHMENT(S): Applications of candidates 

 

 

BOARD ACTION AS FOLLOWS:  RESOLUTION NO. 2025-01 

ROLL CALL REQUIRED: Yes 

MOTION:  I move the Board appoint  to the vacant Director’s seat which shall be up for election in 

November 2026 for a term ending December 2028. 

 

BOARD MEETING ACTION SUMMARY 

Motion Made By Motion Second 

Director Avila   

Director Campo   

Director Ramirez   

Director Stokman   

Director Traore   

 

Roll Call Vote Aye No Abstain Absent 

Director Avila     

Director Campo     

Director Ramirez     

Director Stokman     

Director Traore     

51 of 54



BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

Special Board Meeting – January 13, 2025 

9G. Appointment to Vacant Board Seat9G. Appointment to Vacant Board Seat  Page 2 of 2 

 

z:\sharedcloud\hydra\data\tmp\pool-6-thread-1-8848097771029313690.octo\bc06fc11-d34a-47ab-8b51-
dc4628e731fa.docx 1/8/2025 

 

 

 

52 of 54



PUBLIC NOTICE OF BOARD VACANCY 
DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

INTENT TO FILL BY APPOINTMENT 

January 6, 2025 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a vacancy has been created on the 

Board of Directors of the Del Puerto Health Care District by the resignation of 

Director Anne Stokman.  Pursuant to Government Code Section 1780, the Board 

of Directors has 60 days to fill the vacancy. 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Directors of the Del Puerto 

Health Care District is accepting letters of interest from District residents 

interested in appointment to the Board to fill such vacancy.  The term of office will 

expire December 2026 (short term). 

THIS NOTICE IS TO BE POSTED, by direction of the Board of Directors, 

in three conspicuous locations in the District at least 15 days before the 

appointment is made as well as published in the local newspaper. 

Letters of interest along with a resume should be received by January 20, 
2025. 

Please mail to: 

Del Puerto Health Care District 
P.O. Box 187 
Patterson, CA  95363 

Attn:  Jasmine Sanchez, Clerk of the Board 

53 of 54



The Board of Directors of the Del Puerto Health Care District 

z:\sharedcloud\hydra\data\tmp\pool-6-thread-1-9064435203127736206.octo\2935a585-9d45-41c0-ba72-78bd8b718589.docx
 1/8/2025 

SUBJECT:   UPDATED January 6, 2025: Ad Hoc Committee for Board of Director’s Vacancy Appointee Search 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

1. Direct staff to publicize Board vacancy.  
2. Board President appoint an Ad-hoc Committee 
3. Ad-hoc Committee to receive and review letters of interest. 
4. Ad hoc Committee to present top two candidates at Board Meeting on January 27,2025. 

 

REQUIREMENTS and PROCESS: 

Publicize, review and recommend nominees for appointment to vacant Board of Directors seat. Per District Bylaws 
and CA State Law the nominee shall be seated until the next election (November 2026) at which time a Director will 
be voted into office to fill the vacated term which ends in December 2028. 

Our Board of Directors’ Bylaws and CA State Law provide how vacancies are to be filled. Following is the 
recommended timeline: 

CALENDAR FOR NOTICE AND APPOINTMENT 

January 6, 2025  Notify Stanislaus County Board of Supervisors; Post Public Notice of Board Vacancy & 
Intent to Fill by Appointment (15 Days). Post Public Notice on District website 

January 6, 2025 Submit Public Notice for publication in Patterson Irrigator: January 9 & 16. 

January 20, 2025 Close acceptance period January 20, 2025  

January 21-24, 2025 Ad-hoc Committee reviews letters of interest and selects two proposed candidates to be 
invited to the next Board meeting 

January 27, 2024 Proposed candidates presented and interviewed by the full Board, appoint best candidate, 
administer Oath of Office, new Director assumes seat immediately 

 

REMAINING TERM OF SEAT VACANT AS OF February 1, 2025: 

Per CA Government Code 1780 (h) (3):  “If the vacancy occurs in the first half of a term of office and at least 130 

days prior to the next general district election, the person appointed to fill the vacancy shall hold the office until the 

next general district election that is scheduled 130 or more days after the date the district board is notified of the 

vacancy, and thereafter until the person who is elected at that election to fill the vacancy has been qualified. The 

person elected to fill the vacancy shall hold office for the unexpired balance of the term of office.” 

• Next general District Election  November 4, 2026 
• 130 days prior to election  June 27, 2026 
• The Board Appointee to the current vacant seat, whose term ends December 2028, shall hold office until the 

person elected on November 4, 2026 to fill the vacancy has been qualified. 
 

54 of 54


	_2025-01-13 Special Board Mtg Agenda
	ANY MEMBER OF THE AUDIENCE DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON A MATTER ON THE AGENDA: Please raise your
	Del Puerto Health Center, 1700 Keystone Pacific Parkway, Bldg. B, North Conference Room

	8A. 2025 Board Calendar
	8B. Policy 1030 Adoption agenda item
	8B1. 1030 DRAFT Progressive Design-Build Conflict of Interest Policy
	1. PURPOSE.  Public Contract Code section 22185.2 requires local agencies to establish an organizational conflict-of-interest policy that applies to progressive design-build projects procured pursuant to Public Contract Code section 22185, et seq.  Or...
	2. POLICY.
	2.1 Defined Terms.
	2.1.1 “DPHCD” means the Del Puerto Health Care District, a California Health Care District organized pursuant to Health & Safety Code section 32000, et seq.
	2.1.2 “Progressive Design-Build” means a project delivery process in which both the design and construction of a project are procured from a single entity that is selected through a qualifications-based selection at the earliest feasible stage of the ...
	2.1.3 “Design-Build Entity” means a corporation, limited liability company, partnership, joint venture, or other legal entity that is able to provide appropriately licensed contracting, architectural, and engineering services as needed pursuant to a D...
	2.1.4 “Design-Build Team” means a Design-Build Entity and the individuals and other entities identified by the Design-Build Entity as members of its team (of any tier).  Members of a Design-Build Team include the general contractor and, if utilized in...
	2.1.5 “Organizational conflicts of interest” are circumstances arising out of existing or past activities, business or financial interests, familial relationships, contractual relationships, and/or organizational structure (e.g., parent entities and t...
	2.1.6 “Proposer” means any consultant, contractor or other person that seeks to submit a proposal to DPHCD as a Design-Build Entity or to join a Design-Build Team.

	2.2 Organizational Conflicts of Interest.
	2.2.1 A Proposer may not have any organizational conflicts of interest.
	2.2.2 Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, an organizational conflict of interest exists in the following instances:
	(a) A Proposer is DPHCD’s general engineering or architectural consultant to a Progressive Design-Build project, except that a subconsultant to the general engineering or architectural consultant that has not yet performed work on the contract to prov...
	(b) A Proposer has assisted or is assisting DPHCD in the management of the Progressive Design-Build project, including the preparation of the requests for qualification, requests for proposal, evaluation criteria, owner’s program, or any other aspect ...
	(c) A Proposer has conducted preliminary design services for the Progressive Design-Build project on behalf of DPHCD, such as conceptual layouts, preliminary design, or preparation of bridging documents.
	(d) A Proposer performed design work related to the Progressive Design-Build project for DPHCD or other stakeholders in the Progressive Design-Build project.
	(e) A Proposer performed design work on a previous contract that specifically excludes it from participating as a Proposer or joining a Design-Build Team for a Progressive Design-Build project.
	(f) A proposer is under contract with any other entity or stakeholder to perform oversight of the Progressive Design-Build project.
	(g) A proposer has obtained advice from or discussed any aspect relating to the Progressive  Design-Build project with any person or entity with an organizational conflict of interest, including, but not limited to, the consultants of any entity that ...
	(h) Any circumstances that would violate California Government Code Section 1090, et seq.


	2.3 Obligations of Proposers.
	2.3.1 Proposers shall make a full written disclosure to DPHCD of the facts and circumstances regarding an organizational conflict of interest or a potential organizational conflict of interest and shall have a continuing obligation to do so until they...
	2.3.2 Proposers shall disclose all relevant facts relating to past, present or planned interests of the Proposer’s Design-Build Team (including the Proposer, Proposer’s proposed consultants and subconsultants and subcontractors and their respective di...
	2.3.3 Proposers shall disclose in the response documents to a Progressive Design-Build request for qualification and request for proposal all the work performed in relation to the particular proposed Progressive Design-Build project.
	2.3.4 If a Proposer determines that an organizational conflict of interest or potential organizational conflict of interest exists, it must disclose the conflict or potential conflict of interest to DPHCD.  Subject to and within the sole discretion of...
	2.3.5 For other organizational conflicts of interest or potential organizational conflicts of interests not mentioned specifically above, such as conflicts involving employees changing companies, mergers and acquisitions of firms, property ownership, ...

	2.4 Obligations After Contract Award.  The successful Proposer to whom a contract is awarded (“Contractor”) has an ongoing obligation to monitor and disclose its organizational conflicts of interest or potential organizational conflicts of interest.  ...
	2.5 Incorporation by Reference.  This policy shall be incorporated by reference into and included as part of all DPHCD Progressive Design-Build project requests for qualification and requests for proposal, and all DPHCD Progressive Design-Build contra...


	9B. Res 2025-01 Declaration of Exempt Surplus Land
	9B1. Resolution 2025-01 - Declaration of Exempt Surplus Land
	9C. Res 2025-02 Sale of Keystone C
	9C1. Resolution Approving Sale of 1700 Keystone Pacific Pkwy
	9D. Res 2025-03 Purchase of Mahaffey South Property
	9D1. Res 2025-03 Approving Acquisition and PSA Mahaffey South
	9D2. DPHC Mahaffey PSA 10-29
	9E. Res 2025-04 Purchase of Mahaffey North Property
	9E1. Res 2025-04 Mahaffey North
	9E2. DPHC Mahaffey North - PSA Signed
	9F. HMSA Proposal Agenda Item
	9F1. HMA Letter Agreement Voluntary Rate Range Program_12_13_2024
	Scope of Services
	Deliverables
	Staffing
	Term of Agreement
	Project Fees

	9F2. HMA Questions answered by SSoto
	9G 2025-01-27 Vacant Seat Appointment
	9G1. 2025 Public Notice of Vacancy
	9G2. Board of Directors Vacancy Candidate Search Updated
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



